ATTORNEY GENERAL
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE -

33 CAPITOL STREET
CONCORD, NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

JAMES T. BOFFETTI
DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

By

JOHN M. FORMELLA
ATTORNEY GENERAL

May 23, 2023

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council
State House

Concord, NH 03301

Your Excellency and Members of the Council:

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to enter into subgrants with the subrecipients
listed below, in an amount totaling $4,460,035 from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), for
the purpose of providing direct services to victims of crime, effective upon Governor and
Executive Council approval or July 1, 2023, whichever is later, through June 30, 2024. This is
an allowable use of ARP FRF funds under Section 602 (c)(1) (C) to respond to the public health
emergency or its negative economic impacts. 100% Federal Funds.

Funds are anticipated to be available in the account 02-20-20-201510-2479, ARPA -
VOCA, for Fiscal Year 2024, upon the acceptance and approval of funding in future fiscal years

as follows:

AS:::; " Subrecipient Vendor # S::::::
072-500575 | New Hampshire Legal Assistance 154648-B001 $747,161
072-500575 | Court Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. | 156690-B001 $565,347
072-500575 | Catholic Charities New Hampshire 177165-B001 $146,540
072-500575 | Mary Hitchcock Memorial Hospital 177160-R001 $280,220
072-500574 | Merrimack County, New Hampshire 177435-B005 $120,000
072-500574 | Strafford County Child Advocacy Center 177478-B008 $75,714
072-500575 | Child Advocacy Center of Coos County, Inc. 177270-B006 $119,000
072-500575 | Child Advocacy Center of Carroll County 165511-B001 $128,148
072-500575 | Granite State Children’s Alliance 172495-B001 $1,136,115
072-500575 | The Front Door Agency, Inc 156244-B001 $155,000
072-500574 | Coos County Attorney’s Office 177270-B006 $40,500

Telephone 603-271-3668 + FAX 603-271-2110 + TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800-735-2964
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072-500574 | Grafton County Attorney’s Office 177397-B005 $159,127
072-500574 | Rockingham County Attorney’s Office 177468-B004 $50,000
072-500574 | Belknap County Attorney’s Office 177360-B004 $85,226
072-500574 | County of Cheshire 177372-B003 $50,000
072-500574 | City of Rochester 177467-B002 $25,836
072-500574 | Sullivan County Attorney’s Office 177482-B002 $75,551
072-500575 | Victims, Inc., The Joan Ellis Victim Assistance Network 166724-B001 $£85,000
072-500575 { Lakes Region Community Services Council 177251-B0O01 $133,550
072-500573 | University of New Hampshire 315187-B083 $282,000
Total: $4,460,035

EXPLANATION

The DOJ subgrants funds, for direct victim services, from the Victims of Crime Act
Grant (VOCA). VOCA was enacted by Congress in 1984 and it established the Crime Victims
Fund. Fines paid by offenders of federal crimes are deposited into this Fund. Money from the
Fund is then distributed to states for the benefit of victims of crime. Due to reduced criminal
fines and penalty deposits into the Fund and non-prosecution agreements that divert funds for
other purposes, VOCA awards have been reduced dramatically resulting in decreased subgrants
to victim service providers.

At the beginning of 2023, the DOJ was granted permission by the Fiscal Committee of
the General Court and the Governor and Executive Council to supplement VOCA subgrants with
funds from the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA). This will allow subrecipients to continue to
provide direct services to victims of crime. Subrecipients providing services in the fields of
sexual assault, domestic violence, underserved populations, and crimes against children are
required to be given priority.

Subrecipients will utilize grant funds as follows:

» New Hampshire Legal Assistance will provide civil legal aid to victims of crime. Court
Appointed Special Advocates of New Hampshire, Inc. provides court advocacy to
victims of child abuse and neglect. The Catholic Charities New Hampshire will provide
legal services to immigrant victims of crime. In addition, The Mary Hitchcock Memorial
Hospital will provide direct victim services to child victims in New Hampshire to include
forensic child advocacy interviews.

e The Child Advocacy Centers that include Merrimack County New Hampshire, Strafford
County Child Advocacy Center, Child Advocacy Center of Coos County, Inc., Child
Advocacy Center of Carroll County, and Granite State Children's Alliance will utilize
funds for training and outreach to ensure court-related interviews of children are
conducted consistently and with the least amount of trauma.
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e The Front Door Agency Inc. collaborates with individuals and families in crisis who need
assistance and support to become self-sufficient. This funding will specifically provide
the Front Door Agency with housing and self-sufficiency support to victims of domestic
violence.

e The Coos County Attorney's Office, Grafton County Attorney's Office, Rockingham
County Attorney's Office, Belknap County Attorney's Office, County of Cheshire, City of
Rochester, and Sullivan County Attorney's Office will utilize subgrants to fund victim
advocate services.

¢ Victims, Inc., The Joan Ellis Victim Assistance Network will provide advocacy to
victims of crime, including support for DUI/DWI, assaults, and negligent homicide.

e Lakes Region Community Services Council will utilize funding to enhance their adverse
childhood program, which are coordinated systems of support focused specifically on
providing services to children affected by trauma as the result of crime.

e The University of New Hampshire will utilize expenses for technology enhancements for
USafeUS Technology. This USafeUS phone application is used statewide by institutes of
higher education to provide information and resources to victims of sexual assault in New
Hampshire.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support these programs.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

—

Johr'; M. Formella
Attorney General

#4031875
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GRANT AGREEMENT-

-FORM NUMBER G-1i (version 11/2021)

. The State of New Hampshire and the Grantee hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

GENERAL PROVISIONS
1. Identification and Definitions.
1.1. State Agency Name 1.2. State Agency Address
New Hampshire Department of Justice 33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301
1.3, Grantee Name 1.4. Grantee Address

New Hampshire Legal Assistance 117 North State Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.5 Grantee Phone # 1.6. Account Number | 1.7. Completion Date | 1.8. Grant

02-20-20-201510-247 P
{603) 206-2210 9-072-500575 06/30/2024 Limitation $747,161
.1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency 1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
Kathleen Carr 1 (603)271-3658

meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant, including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

If Grantee is a municipality or village district: "By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public

1.11. Grgntee Signature 1 1.12. Name & Title of Grantee Signor 1
; /) Sarah Mattson Dustin, Executive Director

Grantee Signature 2 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 2
Grantee Signature 3 Name & Title of Grantee Signor 3
1.13 State Agency Signature(s) 1.14, Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

/W@b C)dAA, _ Kathieen Ca, Director of Administration

By: /y WMW Bond Assistant Attorney General,On: -~/ [/ 4/05/93

1.15. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G &C approval required)

1.16. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

‘By: ' On: !/

2. SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting
through the Agency identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as “the State"), the Grantee
identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as “the Grantee™), shall perform that work identified and
more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as EXHIBIT B (the scope of work
being hereinafter referred to as “the Project”).

Page | of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s):
 Date: _«
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5.2
5.}

5.4,

5.5.

72,

8.2

8.3

Except as otherwise specifically provided for herein, the

AREA COVERED,
_ Grantee shall perform the Project in, and with respect 1o, the State of New

Hampshire. g 9.2.  Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Grantee shall grant to
EEFEECTIVE DATE: COMPLETION OF PRQJECT. the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted eccess to all data for
This Agreement, and 21l obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
effective on the date on the date of appravel of this Agreement by the Govemor purpose whatsoever,
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.16), or upon 9.3.  Nodata shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (“the Effective Date”). * anyone other than the State,
Except ns othenwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4 On and after the Effective Date all data, and eny property which has been reccived
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in I'TS entirety prior (o the date in from (he State or purchased with funds provided for thet purpose under this
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to es “the Completion Date™). Agrecment, shall be the property of the Statc, and shell be ceturned to the State
: : : upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason, whichever
The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBIT C, shall first occur. :
attached hercto. 95,  The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT C. publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT C, and in consideration 10. . Notwithstanding anything in
of the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, nd a3 this Agreement to the contrary, all obligationa of the State hereunder, including,
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the without limitation, the continuance of payments hercunder, are contingent upon
Grantee the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount otherwise * the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no cvent shall the State
payable to the, Grantee under this subparngraph 5.3 those sums required, or be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N H. RSA 80:7 through 7-¢. funds. In the event of & reduction or termination of those funds, the State shall
The payment by the Statc of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete have the right to withhold payment until such funds become nvailable, if ever, and
payment to the Grantee for all expenses, of whatcver nature, incurred by the " shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Grantee in the performance hereof, and shail be the only, end the complete, Grantee notice of such termination, y
compensation to the Grantee for the Project. The State shall have no liabilities lo 11, EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES. :
the Grantee other than the Grant Amountl. 111, Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of the Grantee shall constilute
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding an evert of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as “Events of Default™):
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, [1.1.1 Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
or actually made, hercunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 11,12 Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
these gencral provisions. 11.1.3  Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hereunder; or
In 11.1.4 Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreement.
conneclion with the performance of the Project, the Grantee shail comply with all 11.2.  Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may tske any one, or more,
statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or municipal or all, of the following sctions:
authorities which shall impose eny obtigations or duty upon the Grantee, including 11.2.1 Give the Grantee a written notice specifying the Event of Default and requiring it
the sequisilion of any and all necessary permits and RSA 31-95-b. to be remedied within, in the sbsence of & greater or lesser specification of time,
! thirty {30} days from the date of the notice; and if the Event of Default is not
Between the Effective Date and the date seven (7} years after the Completion timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2) days after giving the
Date, unless otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency, the ‘Grantee Grantee notice of termination; and
shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in connection with the 11.2.2 Give the Granlee 8 written natice specifying the Event of Default and suspending
Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration, transportation, all payments to be made under this Agreement and ordering that the portion of the
insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services. Such accounts Grant Amount which would othenwise accrue to the Grantee during the period
shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar documents. i from the date of such notice until such time as the Statc determines that the
Between the Effective Date end the date seven (7) years afier the Complelion . Grantee has cured the Event of Default shall never be paid to the Grantee; and
Date, untess otherwise required by the grant terms or the Agency pursuant to 11.2.3 Set off against any other obligation the State mey owe to the Grantee any damages
subparagraph 7.1, at any lime during the Grantee's normel business hours, and as the State suffers by reason of eny Event of Default; and
often as the State shalt demand, the Grantee shall make available (o the Swte all 11.2.4  Treat the sgreement as breached end pursue eny of its remedies at law or in equity,
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Grantee shall or both. :
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make sudits 12. .
of all contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as that 12.1.  Enthe event of eny carty termination of this Agreement for any reeson other than
term is hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters covered the completion of the Project, the Grantee shall deliver to the Grant Officer, not
by this Agreement. As used in this persgreph, “Grantee™ includes all persons, later than fifleen (15) days. after the date of termination, a report (hercinafter
natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by, or under common ownership referred to as the “Termination Report”) describing in detsil all Project Work
with, the entity identified as the Grantee in block 1.3 of these provisions performed, and the Grant Amount ¢arned, to and including the date of termination.
. In the event of Termination under paregraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
The Grantee shall, at its own expense, provide il personnel necessery to perform 2.2, provisions, the approvel of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle
the Project. The Grantee wamants that all personnet engaged in the Project sheil the Grantee Lo receive that portion of the Grant amount ezrned to end including
be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed and authorized the date of termination. )
to perform such Project under all applicable laws. [n the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
The Grantee shall not hire, and it shall not permil any subcontractor, subgrantee, 12.3. provisions, the approvel of such a Termination Report by the State shell in ne
or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a combined effort event relieve the Grantee from any and all lisbility for damages sustained or
to perform the Project, to hire any person who hes a contractual relationship with incurred by the State as a result of the Grentee’s breach of its obligations
the State, or who is a State officer or employee, clected or appointed. hereunder.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the State hercunder. In the event Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either the State or,
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of this Agrecment by the Grant 12.4. except where notice default has been given to the Grantee hereunder, the Grentee,
Ofticer, and hiser decision on any dispute, shall be final. may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thiny (30) days written notice.
H . 5 . No officer, member of employee of the Grantee,
As used in this Agreement, the'word “data” shall mean all information and'things 13. and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New Hampshire or of
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by the governing body of the locality or locatities in which the Project is to be
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files, performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the review or
formulae, surveys, meps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic represcniations,
Page 2 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s):

computer programs, computer printouls, noles, letlers, memoranda, paper, and
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17.
i7.1

1713

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shail participate in
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal intercst
or the interest of any corporation, partnership, or associalion in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniery interest, direct or indireet, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
; In the performance of this
Agreement the Grantee, its employces, and any subcontractor or subgrantee of
\he Grantee ere in all respects independent contractors, and are neither agents
nor employees of the State. Neither the Grantee nor any of its officers,
employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees, shail have authority
to bind the State nor are they entifled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.

. The Grantee shall not assign, or
otherwise transfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Grantee other than as set forth in Exhibit B without the prior
writien consent of the State. . )

 The Grantee shall defend, indemnify and hold harmless
the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and all losses suffered
by the State, its officers and employees, and any and all claims, liabilities or
penaltics asserted against the State, its officers and cmployees, by or on behalf
of arly person, on account of, based an, resulting from, arising out of {or which
may be claimed to arise out of) the ects or omissions of the Grantee or
subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Grantee. Notwithstanding Lhe
foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to constitute a waiver of the
sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is hereby reserved o the State.
This covenant shall survive the termination of this agreement.

The Grantee shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subconlractor, subgrantee or.assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintgin in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory workers’ compensation and employecs lability insurance for all
employees cngaged in the performance of the Project, and

General liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries, death or property
damage, in amounts not less then $1,000,000 per occurrence and $2,000,000
aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and $500,000 for property
damage in any one incident; and

Page 3 of 26

17.2. The policies described in subparagraph 17,1 of this paragraph shall be the standard

20
21,
22,
23.

24,

form employed in the State of New Hempshire, issued by underwriters acceplable
10 the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New Hampshire. Grantes
shall furnish to the State, certificates of insurance for all renewal(s) of insurance
required under this Agreement no later than ten (10) days prior to the expiration
date of each insurance policy.

. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed & waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed & waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed & waiver of the right of the State to enforce cach and all of the
provisions hereof upon‘any further or other default on the pen of the Grantee.
NOTICE. Any notice by & party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in @ United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the sddresses
first above given. '

. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discherged only

“by &n instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only after approval of

such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State
of New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.

. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upen and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective successors
and essignees. The cajtions and contents of the “subject” blank are used only as
a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered & part of this Agreement or
to be used in determining the intend of the partics hereto, !

. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third partics
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.

. This Agreement, which may be exccuted in a number
of counterparts, cach of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
pgreements and understandings relating hereto. ' "

_ The additional or modifying provisions set forth in
Exhibit A hereto are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date: Eﬁt?ﬂi




EXHIBIT A

_SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

New Hampshire Legal Assistance as the Grantee (hereinafter referred to as “Subrecipient”) shall be
compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and specifications detailed below, which are subject to
annual review,

1. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may entail
providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when necessary.
The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them comply with these
requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet at www.lep.gov,

2 The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability, a
copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights, Office of
-Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional information
regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website at
http://www.doj.nh.gov/grants-management]civil-rights.htm and understand if you are awarded
funding from this office, civil rights compliance wil! be monitored by this office, and the Office
for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

3. The Subrecipient witl comply (and will require any subrecipients or contractors to comply)
with any applicable nondiscrimination provisions, which may include the Omnibus Crime
Control and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 US.C. § 10228(c)); the Victims of Crime Act (34
U.S.C. § 20110(e)); the Juvenile Justice and Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 US.C. §
11182(b)); the Violence Against Women Act (34 U.S.C. § 12291(b)(13)); the Civil Rights Act
of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); the Indian Civil Rights! Act (25 U.S.C.'§§ 1301-1303); the
Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); the Ainericans with Disabilities Act of 1990 (42
U.S.C. §§ 12131-34); the Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. §§ 1681, 1683, 1685-86);
and the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (42 U.S.C. §§ 6101-07). It will also comply with Ex.
Order 13279, Equal Protection of the Laws for Faith-Based and Community Organizations;
Executive Order 13559, Fundamental Principles and Policymaking Criteria for Partnerships -
With Faith-Based and Other Neighborhood Organizations; and the DOJ implementing
regulations at 28 C.F.R. Part 38.

4. Compensation for individual consultant services is to be reasonable and consistent with that
paid for similar setvices in the marketplace. The current consultant limit is $650 per day or
$81.25 per hour. When the rate exceeds the limit for an 8-hour day, or a proportionate hourly
rate (excluding travel and subsistence costs), a written prior approval is required . Prior approval

requests require additional justification.
Page 4 of 26 : M
Subrecipient Initial(s): :
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EXHIBIT A

5. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on or be
billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly managed or
supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express approval of the’
NH DOJ.

- 6. The Subrecipient understands that grants.are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future years.

7.2 CFR 200 as amended (Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit
Requirements for Federal Awards)

are considered legally binding and enforceable documents under this contract. The DOJ reserves
the right to use any legal remedy at its disposal including, but not limited to, disallowance of costs
or withholding of funds. ' :

8. To the extent required to comply with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements,'Subrecipient
shall complete an audit at the end of the Subrecipient’s fiscal year ending after June 30, 2022

The audit report shall include a schedule of prior year's questioned costs along with a response to
the current status of the prior year's questioned costs. Copies of all management letters written as a
result of the'audit along with the audit report shall be forwarded to DOJ within one month of the
time of receipt by the Subrecipient accompanied by an action plan, if applicable, for each finding or
questioned cost. ' i :

9. The costs charged under this contract shall be determined as allowable under the direct cost”
principles

detailed in 2 CFR 200 Subpart E — Cost Principles.
10. Notwithstanding paragraph 7.1 and 7.2 of the standard provisions,

program and financial records pertaining to this contfact shall be retained by the Subrecipient for 5
(five) years from the date of submission of the final expenditure report as per requirements from the .
Treasury Office of Inspector General. i

I1. RESTRICTION ON ADDITIONAL FUNDING -

It is understood and agreed between the parties that no portion of the “Grant” funds may be used for
the purpose of obtaining additional Federal funds under any other law of the United States, except if
authorized under that law.” -

12. ASSURANCES/CERTIFICATIONS

The following are attached and signed: Certification Regarding Drug-Free Workplace
Requirements; Certification Regarding Lobbying; Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension
and Other Responsibility Matters; Certification Regarding the Americans With Disabilities Act
Compliance; Certification Regarding Environmental Tobacco Smoke; Assurance of Compliance

Page 5 of 26 ' Subrecipient Initial(s): Z
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EXHIBIT A

Nondiscrimination in Federally Assisted Programs; and Certification Regarding the Federal
Funding Accountability and Transparency Compliance.”

13. COPELAND ANTI-KICKBACK ACT

All contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for construction or repair using funds under this grant shall
include a provision for compliance with Copeland “Anti-Kickback” Act (18 USC 874) as
supplemented in Department of Labor Regulations (29 CFR, Part 3). This Act provides that each
Subrecipient, subcontractor or Subrecipient shall be prohibited from inducing, by any means, any '
person employed in the construction, completion or repair of public work, to give up any part of the
compensation to which he is otherwise entitled. The Subrecipient should report all suspected

violations to DOJ.
14. PROCUREMENT

Subrecipient shall comply with all provisions of 2 CFR 200 Subpart D — Post Federal Awara
Requirements — Procurement Standards, with special emphasis on financial procurement (2CFR
200 Subpart F — Audit Requirements) and property management (2 CFR 200 Subpart D — Post
Federal Award Requirements — Property Standards)

15, CLOSE OUT OF CONTRACT

Subrecipient shall submit a final report electronically to the DOJ grant officer by e-mail or other
electronic means subsequently designated by DOJ of the uses of the grant funds through June 30,
2024, and shall break down the reporting by facility location at the town level. In the event that
Subrecipient has not demonstrated that the grant funds have not been expended for allowable costs
of at least the amount of this grant, the excess grant funds shall not be paid and will lapse.

16. Requirement to report actual or imminent breach of personally identifiable information (PII)

Any "subrecipient" at any tier must have written procedures in place to respond in the event of an
actual or imminent "breach” (OMB M-17-12} if it (or a subrecipient)--(1) creates, collects, uses,
processes, stores, maintains, disseminates, discloses, or disposes of "personally identifiable
information (PI1)" (2 CFR 200.79) within the scope of an OJP grant-funded program or activity, or
(2) uses or operates a "Federal information system" (OMB Circular A-130).

The subrecipient's breach procedures must include a requirement to report actual or imminent
breach of PII to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit by the end of
the business day in which the breach béecomes known.

17. Employment eligibility verification for hiring under the award

1. The recipient (and any subrecipient at any tier) must‘;
A. Ensure that, as part of the hiring process for any position within the United States that is or will

Page 6 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s):
’ Date: ?11



EXHIBIT A

“be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds, the subrecipient properly verifies the employment
eligibility of the individual who is being hired, consistent with the provisions of 8 U.S.C.
1324a(a)(1) and (2).

B. Notify all persons associated with any subrecipient who are or will be involved in activities
under this award of both--

1. this award requirement for verification of employment eligibility, and

2. the associated provisions in 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(l) and (2) that, generally speaking, make it
unlawful, in the United States, to hire (or recruit for employment) certain aliens.

(O Provide training (to the extent necessary) to those persons required by this condition to be
notified of the award requirement for employment eligibility verification and of the associated
provisions of 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(1) and (2). :

D. As part of the recordkeeping for the award (including pursuant to the Part 200 Uniform
Requirements), maintain records of all employment eligibility verifications pertinent to compliance '
with this award condition in accordance with Form 1-9 record retention requirements, as well as
records of all pertinent notifications and trainings. -

2. Monitoring
The recipient's monitoring responsibilities inciude monitoring of subrecipient compliance with this

condition.

3. Allowable costs

To the extent that such costs are not reimbursed under any other federal program, award funds may
be obligated for the reasonable, necessary, and allocable costs (if any) of actions designed to ensure '
compliance with this condition. :

4. Rules of construction

A Staff involved in hiring process :

For purposes of this condition, persons nwho are or will be involved in activities under this award"
specifically includes (without limitation) any and all subrecipient officials or other staff who are or
will be involved in the hiring process with respect to a position that is or will be funded (in whole
or in part) with award funds.-

B. Employment eligibility confirmation with E-verify ;

For purpose of satisfying the requirement of this condition regarding verification of employment
eligibility, any subrecipient may choose to participate in, and use, E-Verify (www.e-verify.gov),
provided an appropriate person authorized to act on behalf of the subrecipient uses E-Verify (and
follows the proper E-Verify procedures, including in the event of a "Tentative Nonconfirmation" or
a "Final Nonconfirmation™) to confirm employment eligibility for each hiring for a position in the
United States that is or will be funded (in whole or in part) with award funds. '

C. "United States” specifically includes the District of Columbia, Puerto Rico, anrﬁ, the Virgin
Islands of the United States, and the Commonwealth of the Northern Mariana Islands.

Page 7 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT A

" D. Nothing in this condition shall be understood to authorize or require any subrecipient at any tier,
or any person or other entity, to violate any federal law, including any applicable civil rights or
nondiscrimination law. '

E. Nothing in this condition, including in péragraph 4.B., shall be understood to relieve any
subrecipient at any tier, or any petson or other entity, of any obligation otherwise imposed by law,
including 8 U.S.C. 1324a(a)(}) and (2).

Questions about E-Verify should be directed to DHS. For more information about E-Verify visit the
E-Verify website (https://www.e-verify.gov/) or email E-Verify at E-Verify@dhs.gov. E-Verify
employer agents can email E-Verify at E-VerifyEmployerAgent@dhs.gov.

Questions about the meaning or scope of this condition should be directed to OJP, before award
acceptance.

18. The subrecipient agrées to submit qdartcrly performance reports

On the performance metrics identified by NHDOJ, and in the manner required by NHDOJ. This !
information on the activities supported by the award funding will assist in assessing the effects that
VOCA Victim Assistance funds have had on services to crime victims within the jurisdiction.

19. Determination of suitability to interact with participating minors

SCOPE. This condition applies to this award if it is indicated -- in the application for the award (as
approved by DOJ)(or in the application for any subaward, at any tier), the DOJ funding
announcement (solicitation), or an associated federal statute -- that a purpose of some or all of the
activities to be carried out under the award (whether by a subrecipient at any tier) is to benefit a set
of individuals under 18 years of age. ’

Any subrecipient at any tier, must make determinations of suitability before certain individuals may
interact with participating minors. This requirement applies regardless of an individual's
-employment status.

The details of this requirement are posted on the OJP web site at https://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/!
nteract-Minors.htm (Award condition: Determination of suitability required, in advance, for certain
individuals who may interact with participating minors), and are incorporated by reference here.

20. Certification Regarding EEOP Required

Within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for approval, an acceptable
Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEQP) as required by 28 CFR 42301 etseq.ora
Certification Form to the Office of Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th
Street, NW, Washington, DC 20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification of
exemption is a violation of the Program Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or
termination of funding, until such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. The EEOP reporting
tool and instructions can be found at: https://ojp.gov/about/ocr/faq_eeop.htm

21. Requirements related to "de minimis” indirect cost rate
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'EXHIBIT A

A recipient that is eligible under the Part 200 Uniform Requirements and other applicable law to

use the "de minimis" indirect cost rate described in 2 C.F.R. 200.414(1), and that elects to use the

. “de minimis" indirect Cost rate, must advise OJP,in writing of both its eligibility and its election, . -
and must comply with all associated requirements in the Part 200 Uniform Requirements. The "de
minimis" rate may be applied only to modified total direct costs (MTDC) as defined by the Part 200
Uniform Requirements.
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EXHIBIT B
_SCOPE OF SERVICES-

. The Subrecipient shall receive a grant from the New Hampshire Department of
Justice (DOJ) for cxpenées incurred for civil legal services and victim
advocacy provided to victims of crime including but not limited to personnel,
benefits, travel, supplies, intake services contract and indirect costs.

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on expenditures
described in Exhibit C. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15)
days following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports
submitted later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be
considered late and out of compliance. For example, with an award that begins
on January 1, the first quarterly report is due on April 15" or 15 days afier the
close of the first quarter ending on March 31.

. Subrecipient is required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant
expenses both state funds and match if provided and to produce those
documents upon request of this office or any other state or federal audit
authority. Grant project supporting documentation shall be maintained for at
least seven (7) years after the close of the Federal Grant.

. Subrecipicnt shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by
DOJ. Such desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with
Subrecipient and every attempt shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate-
the schedule.

. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-7820 or Rhonda.J.Beauchemin@doj.nh.gov
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EXHIBIT C
- PAYMENT TERMS-

. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for apprm}cd
expenditure reports as described in EXHIBIT B.

. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the
DOJ’s approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the .
Subrecipient’s account receivables addrcss per the Financial System of the
State of New Hampshire. :

. The State’s obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement

shall not exceed the price limitation set forth in form G-1 section 1.8.

3a. The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $747,161.00 of
the total Grant Limitation from Governor and Council approval or 07/01/2023,
whichever is later, to 06/30/2024, with approved expcr]diturc reports. This shall

be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b. With sufficient reason and under limited circumstances, the Subrecipient
may apply for an extension of the grant period for up to the end of the federal
grant end date, not after. The Subrecipient must submit the request in writing.

No extension is granted until approval is received by DOJ in writing.

. Neither the Subrecipient nor DOJ will be responSIble for any expenses or COsts
" incurred under this agreement prior to Governor and Council approval, or after
06/30/2024 or, unless a grant extension is approved in writing by DOJ.
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EXHIBIT D

- DRUG-FREE WORKPLACE-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of Sections 5151-5160-of the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L.
100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et seq.), and further agrees to have the
Subrecipient's representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification:

Certification Regarding Drug Free Workplace

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Sections 51515160 of the
Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (Pub. L. 100-690, Title V, Subtitle D; 41 U.S.C. 701 et
seq.). The January 31, 1989, regulations were amended and published as Part II of the
May 25, 1990, Federal Register (pages 2 1681-21691), and require certification by
Subrecipients (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients), prior to award,
that they will maintain a drug-free workplace. Section 3017.630(c) of the regulation
provides that a Subrecipient (and by inference, sub-Subrecipients and sub-Subrecipients)
that is a state may elect to make one certification to the Department in each federal fiscal
year in lieu of certificates for each grant during the federal fiscal year covered by the
certification. The certificate set out below is a material representation of fact upon which
reliance is placed when the agency awards the grant. False certification or violation of the
certification shall be grounds for suspension of payments, suspension or termination of
grants, or government wide suspension or debarment. Subrecipients using this form.
should send it to:

Lisa Lamphere
Department of Justice
33 Capitol St
Concord, NH 03301
Lisa.].Lamphere@doj.nh.gov

(A) The Subrecipient certifies that it will or will continue to provide a drug-free workplace by:

(a) Publishing a statement notifying employees that the unlawful manufacture, distribution,
dispensing, possession or use of a controlled substance is prohibited in the Subrecipient’s
workplace and specifying the actions that will be taken against employees for violation of
such prohibition;

(b) Establishing an ongoing drug-free awareness program to inform employees about—
1 (1) The dangers of drug abuse in the woarkplace; :
(2) The Subrecipient’s policy of maintaining a drug-free workplace;
(3) Any available drug counseling, rehabilitation, and employee assistance
programs; and
(4) The penalties that may be imposed upon employees for drug abuse violations
occurring in the workplace;

Page 12 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT D

(¢) Making it a requirement that each employee to be engaged in the perfor‘mance of the grant
be given a copy of the statement required by paragraph (a);

.(d) Notifying the employee in the statement required by paragraph (a) that, as a condition of
employment under the grant, the employee will—
(1) Abide by the terms of the statement; and
(2) Notify the employer in writing of his or her conviction for a violation of a
criminal drug statute occurring in the workplace no later than five calendar days
after such conviction; ’ !

(e) Notifying the agency in writing, within ten calendar days after receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2) from an employee or otherwise receiving actual notice of such
conviction. Employers of convicted employees must provide notice, including position
title, to every grant officer on whose grant activity the convicted employee was working,
unless the Federal agency has designated a central point for the receipt of such notices.

. Notice shall include the identification number(s) of each affected grant;

(f) Taking one of the following actions, within 30 calendar days of receiving notice under
subparagraph (d)(2), with respect to any employee who is so convicted—
(1) Taking appropriate personnel action against such an employee, up to and including
termination, consistent with the requirements of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as
amended; or .
(2) Requiring such employee to participate satisfactorily in a drug abuse assistance or
rehabilitation program approved for such purposes by a Federal, state, or local health, law‘
enforcement, or other appropriate agency;

(g) Making a good faith effort to continue to maintain a drug-free workplace through
implementation of paragraphs (a), (b), (c), (d), (e}, and ().

(B)  The Subrecipient may insert in the space provided belc_:iw the site(s) for the performance of
work done in connection with the specific grant.
Place of Performance (street address, city, county, State, zip code) {list each location)

: 32 g""; :‘;Z::’:SB‘;:;: gaogzl&mon N 1850 Elm Street, Suite 7, Manchester, NH 03104
P 9 : : 154 High Street, Portsmouth, NH 03801

e 117 N. State Street, Concord, NH 03301 -
Check [] if there are workplaces on file that are not identified here.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance July 1,2023 - June 30, 2024
Subrecipient Name Period Covered by this Certification

Sarah Mattson Dustin, Executive Director
Name and Title of Authorized Subrecipient Representative

Y 12D o

SufSrecipient Representative Signature Date’
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EXHIBITE

-LOBBYING-

" The Subrecipiént_idéntiﬁed in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with

the provisions of Section 319 of Public Law 101-121, Government wide Guidance for New
Restrictions on Lobbying, and 31 U.S.C. 1352, and further agrees to have the
Subrecipient’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of the Grant
Agreement execute the following Certification: '

CERTIFICATION REGARDING LOBBYING
Programs (indicate applicable program covered): American Rescue Plan Act
Contract Period:  July 1, 2023 — June 30, 2024 ' ;

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

No Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid by or on behalf of the
undersigned, to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with the awarding of any Federal
contract, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal contract, grant,
loan, or cooperative agreement (and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-
Subrecipient).

If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid or will be paid to any
person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of
Congress in connection with this Federal contract, grant, loan, or cooperative agreement
(and by specific mention sub-Subrecipient or sub-Subrecipient), the undersigned shall
complete and submit Standard Form LLL, “Disclosure Form to Report Lobbying, in
accordance with its instructions, attached and identified as Standard Exhibit E-1.

The undersigned shall require that the language of this certification be included in the
award document for sub-awards at all tiers (including subcontracts, sub-grants, and
contracts under grants, loans, and cooperative agreements) and that all sub-recipients shall
certify and disclose accordingly. :

“This certification is a material representation.of fact upon which reliance.was placed when

this transaction was made or entered into, Submission of this certification is a prerequisite
for making or entering into this transaction imposed by Section 1352, Title 31, U.S. Code.
Any person who fails to file the required-certification shall be subject to a civil penalty of

not less than $10,000 and not more than $100,000 for each such failure.

Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient’s Representative Title
New Hampshire Legal Assistance 97 /’7//20}3
Subrecipient Name Date
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EXHIBIT F
-DEBARMENT-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of Executive Office of the President, Executive Order 12529 and 45 CFR
Part 76 regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Other Responsibility Matters, and further
agrees to have the Subrecipient’s representative, as identified in Sections 1.11 and 1.12 of
the Grant Agreement execute the following Certification;

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, AND OTHER
RESPONSIBILITY MATTERS - PRIMARY COVERED TRANSACTIONS

Instructions for Certification
- (1) By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement, the Subrecipient is providing the
certification set out below.

(2) The inability of a person to provide the certification required below will not necessarily
result in denial of participation in this covered transaction. If necessary, the Subrecipient
shall submit an explanation of why it cannot provide the certification. The certification or
explanation will be considered in connection with the DOJ determination whether to enter
into this transaction. However, failure of the Subrecipient to furnish a certification or an
explanation shall disqualify such person from participation in this transaction.

(3) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when DOJ determined to enter into this transaction. If it is later determined that the
Subrecipient knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies
available to the Federal Government, DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or
default. :

(4) The Subrecipient shall provide immediate written notice to DOJ, to whom this Grant-is
submitted if at any time the Subrecipient learns that its certification was erroneous when
submitted or has become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances. ‘

(5) The terms “covered transaction,” “debarred,” “suspended,” “ineligible,” “lower tier
covered transaction,” “participant,” “person,” “primary covered transaction,” “principal,”
“proposal,” and “voluntarily excluded,” as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in

the Definitions and Coverage sections of the rules implementing Executive Order 12549:
45 CFR Part 76.

(6) The Subrecipient agrees by submitting this Grant that, should the proposed covered
transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily
excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by DOJ. .

(7) The Subrecipient further agrees by submitting this Grant that it will include the clause

" titled “Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary _
Exclusion - Lower Tier Covered Transactions,” provided by DOJ, without modification, in
all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered
transactions.

(8) A Subrecipient in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of Subrecipient in a
lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or involuntarily
excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is erconeous.
A Subrecipient may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility
of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the Non-procurement
List (of excluded parties).
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EXHIBIT ¥

(9) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a Subrecipient is not required to exceed that which is
normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 6 of these instructions, if a
Subrecipient in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered
transaction with a person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded
from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal
government, DOJ may terminate this transaction for cause or default. ;

Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, and Othrer
Responsibility Matters - Primary Covered Transactions
08 The Subrecipient certifies to the best of its knowledge and belief, that it and its
principals: ' '

' (a) are not presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared
ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions by any Federal
department or agency; o

(b) have not within a three-year period preceding this Grant been convicted of or
had a civil judgment rendered against them for commission of fraud or a criminal
offense in connection with obtaining, attempting to obtain, or performing a
public (Federal, State or local) transaction or a contract under a public
transaction; violation of Federal or State antitrust statutes or commission of
embezzlement, theft, forgery, bribery, falsification or destruction of records,
making false statements, or receiving stolen property; '

(c) are not presently indicted for otherwise criminally or civilly charged by a
governmental entity (Federal, State or local) with commission of any of the
offenses enumerated in paragraph (1) (b) of this certification; and

(d) have not, within a three-year period preceding this Grant, had one or more
public transactions (Federal, State or local) terminated for cause or default.

(2) = Where the prospective primary participant is unable to certify to any of the
statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to .
this Grant. '

W Executive Director

Sal'.lbrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient’s Representative Title:

New Hampshire Legal Assistance ‘// [/ 7//}(9—3 P
Date *

Subrecipient Name
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EXHIBIT G

-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE
AMERICANS WITH DISABILITIES ACT COMPLIANCE-

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees by signature of
the Subrecipient’s representative as identified in Sections-1.11 and 1.12 of the Grant
Agreement, to éxecute the following certification:

By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient agrees to make
reasonable efforts to comply with all applicable provisions of the Americans with
Disabilities Act of 1990.

/ém Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient’s -Represe'htati\'/e Title

New Hampshire Legal Assistance E C{/ /HJ@}
- Date

Subrecipient Name
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EXHIBIT H

-CERTIFICATION
PUBLIC LAW 103-227, PART C
ENVIRONMENTAL TOBACCO SMOKE-

Public Law 103227, Part C Environmental Tobacco Smoke, also known as the Pro

- Children Act of 1994, requires that smoking not be permitted in any portion of any indoor
facility routinely owned or leased or contracted for by an entity and used routinely or
regularly for provision of health, day care, education, or library services to children under
the age of 18, if the services are funded by Federal programs either directly or through
State or local governments, by Federal grant, contract, loan, ot loan guarantee,
The law does not apply to children's services provided in private residences, facilities
funded solely by Medicare or Medicaid funds, and portions of facilities used for inpatient
drug or alcohol treatment. : )
Failure to comply with the provisions of the law may result in the imposition of a civil
monetary penalty of up to $1000 per day and/or the imposition of an administrative
compliance order on the responsible entity.
By signing and submitting this Grant Agreement the Subrecipient certifies that it will
comply with the requirements of the Act.

The Subrecipient further agrees that it will require the language of this certification be
included in any subawards which contain provisions for the children's services and that all
Subrecipients shall certify accordingly. ’

_/W Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient’s Representative Title

New Harﬁpshirc Legal Assistance | C// /7'/ m

Subrecipient Name ' Date
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EXHIBIT I

-Assurance Of Compliance Nondiscrimination In Federally Assisted Programs

OMB Burden Disclosure Statement-

Public reporting burden for this collection of information is estimated to average 15
minutes per response, including the time for reviewing instructions, searching existing data
sources, gathering and maintaining the data needed, and completing and reviewing the
collection of information. Send éomments regarding this burden estimate or any other
aspect of this collection of information, including suggestions for reducing this burden, to
the Office of Management and Budget (OMB), Paperwork Reduction Project (1910-0400),
Washington, DC 20503.

The Subrecipient agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Righits Act of 1964 (Pub. L.
88-352), Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972, as amended, (Pub. L. 92-318,
Pub. L. 93-568, and Pub. L. 94-482), Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (Pub.
L. 93-112), the Age Discrimination Act of 1975 (Pub. L. 94-1 35), Title VIII of the Civil
Rights Act of 1968 (Pub. L. 90-284). In accordance with the above laws and regulations
issued pursuant thereto, the Subrecipient agrees to assure that no person in the United
States shall, on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex, age, or disability, be
excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity in which the Subrecipient receives Federal
assistance.

Applicability and Period of Obligation In the case of any service, financial aid, covered
employment, equipment, property, or structure provided, leased, or improved with Federal
assistance extended to the Subrecipient by DOJ with federal CARES Act funds, this
assurance obligates the Subrecipient for the period during which Federal assistance is
extended. In the case of any transfer of such setvice, financial aid, equipment, property, or
structure, this assurance obligates the transferee for the period during which Federal
assistance is extended. If any personal property is so provided, this assurance obligates the
Subrecipient for the period during which it retains ownership or poessession of the property.

Employment Practices Where a primary objective of the Federal assistance is to provide
employment or where the Subrecipient's employment practices affect the delivery of
services in programs or activities resulting from Federal assistance extended by DOJ, the
Subrecipient agrees not to discriminate on the ground of race, color, national origin, sex,
age, or disability, in its employment practices. Such employment practices may include,
but are not limited to, recruitment, advertising, hiring, layoff or termination, promotion,
demotion, transfer, rates of pay, training and participation in upward mobility programs; or
other forms of compensation and use of facilities.

Subrecipient Assurance The Subrecipient shall require any individual, organization, or
other entity with whom it subcontracts, subgrants, or subleases for the purpose of
providing any service, financial aid, equipment, property, or structure to comply with laws
and regulations cited above. To this end, the subrecipient shall be required to sign a written
assurance form; however, the obligation of both recipient and subrecipient to ensure ’
‘compliance is not relieved by the collection or submission of written assurance forms.

Data Collection and Access to Records The Subrecipient agrees to compile and maintain l
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EXHIBIT I

information pertaining to programs or activities developed as a result of the Subrecipient's
receipt of Federal assistance from DOJ. Such information shall include, but is not limited
to the following: (1) the manner in which services are or will be provided and related data
necessary for determining whether any persons are or will be denied such services on the
basis of prohibited discrimination; (2) the population eligible to be served by race, color,

. national origin, sex, age and disability; (3) data regarding covered employment including
use or planned use of bilingual public contact employees serving beneficiaries of the
program where necessary to permit effective participation by beneficiaries unable to speak
or understand English; (4) the location of existing ot proposed facilities connected with the
program and related information adequate for determining whether the location has or will
have the effect of unnecessarily denying access to any person on the basis of prohibited
discrimination; and (5) the present or proposed membership by race, color, national origin,
sex, age and disability in any planning or advisory body which is an integral part of the
program. T

The Subrecipient agrees to submit requested data to DOJ, the U.S. Department of Treasury
or OMB regarding programs and activities developed by the Subrecipient from the use of
CARES Act funds extended by DOJ upon request. Facilities of the Subrecipient (including
the physical plants, buildings, or other structures) and all records, books, accounts, and
other sources of information pertinent to the Subrecipient's compliance with the civil rights
laws shail be made available for inspection during normal business hours on request of an
officer or employee of DOJ, the U.S. Department of Treasury or OMB specifically
authorized to make such inspections. -

This assurance is given in consideration of and for the purpose of obtaining any and all
Federal grants, loans, contracts (excluding procurement contracts), property, discounts or
other Federal assistance extended after the date hereof, to the Subrecipient by DOJ
including installment payments on account after such data of application for Federal
assistance which are approved before such date. The Subrecipient recognizes and agrees
that such Federal assistance will be extended in reliance upon the representations and
agreements made in this assurance, and that the United States shall have the right to seek
judicial enforcement of this assurance. This assurance is binding on the Subrecipient, the
successors, transferees, and assignees, as well as the person(s) whose signatures appear
below and who are authorized to sign this assurance on behalf of the Subrecipient.

Subrecipient Certification

The Subrecipient certifies that it has complied, or that, within 90 days of the date of the
grant, it will comply with all applicable requirements of 10 C.F.R. § 1040.5 (a copy will
be furnished to the Subrecipient upon written request to DOJ).

Executive Director

Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient’s Representative Title

New Hampshire Legal Assistance (/{/ ﬂ’/ﬁé} ? i :

Subrecipignt Name Dafg {
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EXHIBIT J

-CERTIFICATION REGARDING THE FEDERAL FUNDING ACCOUNTABILITY
AND TRANSPARENCY ACT (FFATA) COMPLIANCE-

The Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act (FFATA) requires Subrecipients
of individual Federal grants equal to or greater than $30,000 and awarded on or after
October 1, 2010, to report on data related to executive compensation and associated first-
tier sub-grants of $30,000 or more. If the initial award is below $30,000 but subsequent
grant modifications result in a total award equal to or over $30,000, the award is subject to
the FFATA reporting requirements, as of the date of the award. '

In accordance with 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subawaid and Executive Compensation
Information), DOJ must report the following information for any grant award subject to the
FFATA reporting requirements:

1) Nahe of entity

2) Amount of award

3) Funding agency

4) NAICS code for contracts / CFDA program number for grants
5) Program source

6) Award title descriptive of the purpose of the funding action

7) Location of the entity

8) Principle place of performance

-9) Unique identifier of the entity (SAM #)

10) Total corﬁpensation and names of the top five executives if:

a. More than 80% of annual gross revenues aré from the Federal government, and those
revenues are greater than $25M annually and

b. Compensation information is not already available through reporting to the SEC.

Subrecipients must submit FFATA required data by the end of the month, plus 30 days, in
which the award or award amendment is made.

The Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement agrees to comply with
the provisions of the Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency Act, Public Law
109-282 and Public Law 110-252, and 2 CFR Part 170 (Reporting Subaward and
Executive Compensation Information), and further agrees to have one of the
Subrecipient’s representative(s), as identified in Sections 1.11 of the Grant Agreement
execute the following Certification: ' : ;

The below named Subrecipient agrees to provide needed information as outlined above to
DOJ and to comply with'all applicable provisions of the Federal Financial Accountability
and Transparency Act.

Page 21 of 26 Subrecipient Initial(s): )
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EXHIBIT J

\ Executive Director >
Subrecipient Representative Signature Subrecipient’s Representative Title

New Hampshi-rc Legal Assistance 6{/ / 77,74(9'3

Subrecipient Name - Date

As the Subrecipient identified in Section 1.3 of the Grant Agreement, [ certify that the responses to the
below listed questions are true and accurate. '

1. The UEI number for your entity is;__ FEYXETEA4DMS__

2. In your business or organization’s preceding completed fiscal year, did your business or organization
receive (1) 80 percént or more of your annual gross revenue in U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans,
grants, sub-grants, and/or ‘cooperative agreements; and (2) $25,000,000 or more in annual gross revenues
from U.S. federal contracts, subcontracts, loans, grants, subgrants, and/or cooperative agreements?

X NO YES

—_—
1

If the answer to #2 above is NO, stop here
If the answer to #2 above is YES, please answer the following:

3. Does the public have access to information about the compensation of the executives in your business or
organization through periodic reports filed under section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934 (15 U.S.C.78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue Code of 19867

NO YES

If the answer to #3 above is YES, stop

If the answer to #3 above is NO, please answer the following:
4. The names and compensation of the five most highly compensated officers in your business or

organization are as follows:

Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: Amount:
Name: ' Amount:
Name: ~_Amount:

Page 22 of 26 : Subrecipient Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT K

-EEOP REPORTING, CIVIL RIGHTS COMPLIANCE AND STANDARD ASSURANCES-

I, _Sarah Mattson Dustin .~ [responsible official], certify that
New Hampsk{ire Legal Assistance has completed the EEO reporting tool

certiﬁcatiqn within the last two years at: htths://g’[mgov!about/ocrlfaq eeop.htm on’

8/4/2021 [date)

It is understood that subrecipients which are exempt from filing the EEOP Utilization Report
including non-profits and subrecipients with less than 50 employees must file a declaration
claiming exemption at least once every two years with the Office for Justice Programs; Office of
-Civil Rights at the above web address. ‘

EEOP Training Requirements for Subrecipients

Sarah Mattson Dustin [official that complefed training] has completed

the EEOP training at https:/foip.gov/about/ocr/ocr-training-videos/video-ocr-training.htm on:

8/4/2021 [date]). The EEOP training must be completed at least once every
. twao years. ' .

DOJ Discrimination Complaint Process ' . .
If individuals believe they may have been discriminated against by the NH Department of Justice
or by an organization that receives federal funding from the NH Department of Justice based on
their race, color, national origin, religion, sex, disability, age, sexual orientation or gender -
identity should print and complete a complaint form that can be found at: Civil Rights | Grants
Management Unit | NH Department of Justice

Subrecipient Discrimination Complaint Process ) :
 further certify that: the Subrecipient will comply with applicable federal civil rights laws that
‘prohibit discrimination in employment and in the delivery of services and has a policy or written
procedure in place for accepting discrimination based complaints from employees and program
beneficiaries and that policy/procedure must be made publically available to program

beneficiaries or prospective beneficiaries. '

Page 23 of 26 Subrecipicﬁt Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT K

" Certified Standard Assugs_mces

On behalf of the Subrecipient, and in support of this application for a grant or cooperative
agreement, | certify under penalty of perjury to the U.S. Department of Justice ("Department"),
that all of the.following are true and correct:

. (1) I have the authority to make the following representations on behalf of myself and the
Subrecipient. I understand that these representations will be relied upon as materia! in any
Department decision to make an award to the Subrecipient based on its application.

(2) I certify that the Subrecipient has the legal authority to apply for the federal assistance sought
by the application, and that it has the institutional, managerial, and financial capability (including
funds sufficient to pay any required non-federal share of project costs) to plan, manage, and
complete the project described in the application properly.

(3) I assure that, throughout the period of performance for the award (if any) made by the
~ Department based on the application—

a. the Subrecipient will comply with all award requirements and all federal statutes and

regulations applicable to the award,

b. the Subrecipient will require all subrecipients to comply with all applicable award
_requirements and all applicable federal statutes and regulations; and :

c. the Subrecipient will maintain safeguards to address and prevent any organizational

conflict of interest, and also to prohibit employees from using their positions in any

manner that poses, or appears to pose, a personal or financial conflict of interest.

(4) The Subrecipient understands that the federal statutes and regulations applicable to the award
(if any) made by the Department based on the application specifically include statutes and
regulations pertaining to civil rights and nondiscrimination, and, in addition—

a. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to civil rights will
include section 601 of the Civil Rights'Act of 1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d); section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973 (29 U.S.C. § 794); section 901 of the Education
Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681); and section 303 of the Age Discrimination Act
of 1975.(42 US.C. § 6102); ’

b. the Subrecipient understands that the applicable statutes pertaining to
nondiscrimination may include section 809(c) of Title I of the Omnibus Crime Control
and Safe Streets Act of 1968 (34 U.S.C. § 10228(c)); section 1407(e) of the Victims of
Crime Act of 1984 (34 U.S.C. § 20110(e)); section 299A(b) of the Juvenile Justice and
Delinquency Prevention Act of 2002 (34 U.S.C. § 11182(b)); and that the grant condition
set out at section 40002(b)(13) of the Violence Against Women Act (34'U.S.C. §
12291(b)(13)), which will apply to all awards made by the Office on Violence Against
Women, also may apply to an award made otherwise;
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EXHIBIT K
{
¢. the Subrecipient understands that it must require any pass-through subrecipient to
comply with all such applicable statutes (and associated regulations); and

d. on behalf of the Subrecipient, | make the specific assurances set out in 28 CF.R. §§
42.105 and 42.204.

(5) The Subrecipient aiso understands that (in addition to any applicable program-specific
regulations and to applicable federal regulations that pertain to civil rights and ‘
nondiscrimination) the federal regulations applicable to the award (if any) made by the
Department based on the application may include, but are not limited to, 2 C.F.R. Part 2800 (the
DOJ "Part 200 Uniform Requirements™) and 28 C.F.R. Parts 22 (confidentiality - research and
statistical information), 23 (criminal intelligence systems), 38 (regarding faith-based or religious
organizations participating in federal financial assistance programs), and 46 (human subjects
protection). -

(6) 1 assure that the Subrecipient will assist the Department as necessary (and will require
subrecipients and contractors to assist as necessary) with the Department's compliance with
section 106 of the National Historic Preservation Act of 1966 (54 U.S.C. § 306108), the
Archeological and Historical Preservation Act of 1974 (54 U.S.C. §§ 312501-3 12508),.and the
Nationa! Environmental Policy Act of 1969 (42 U.S.C. §§ 4321-4335), and 28 C.F.R. Parts 61
(NEPA) and 63 (floodplains and wetlands). :

(7)1 assure that the Subrecipient will give the Department and the Government Accountability
Office, through any authorized representative, access to, and opportunity to examine, all paper or
electronic records related to the award (if any) made by the Department based on the application.

(8) If this application is for an award from the National Institute of Justice or the Bureau of
Justice Statistics pursuant to which award funds may be made available (whether by the award
directly or by any subaward at any tier) to an institution of higher education (as defined at 34
U.S.C. § 10251(a)(17)), 1 assure that, if any award funds actually are made available to such an
institution, the Subrecipient will require that, throughout the period of performance—

a. each such institution comply with any requirements that aré imposed on it by the First
Amendment to the Constitution of the United States; and

b. subject to par. a, each such institution comply with its own representations, if any,
concerning academic freedom, freedom of inquiry and debate, research independence,
and research integrity, at the institution, that are included in promotional materials, in
official statements, in formal policies, in applications for grants (including this award
application), for accreditation, or for licensing, or in submissions relating to such grants,
accreditation, or licensing, or that otherwise are made or disseminated to students, to
faculty, or to the general public.

(9) I assure that, if the Subrecipient is a governmental entity, with respect to the award (if any)
made by the Department based on the application—
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EXHIBIT K

a. it will comply with the requirements of the Uniform Relocation Assistance and Real
Property Acquisitions Act of 1970 (42 U.S.C §§ 4601-4655), which govern the treatment
of persons displaced as a result of federal and federally-assisted programs; and

b. it will comply with requirements of 5 U.S.C. §§ 1501-1508 and 7324-7328, which
limit certain political activities of State or local government employees whose principal
employment is in connection with an activity financed in whole or in part by federal
assistance. ' '

(10) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives an award from the Office of Community
Oriented Policing Services (COPS Office), I assure that as required by 34 U.S.C. § 10382(c)(11),
it will, to the extent practicable and consistent with applicable law--including, but not limited to,
the Indian Self-Determination and Education Assistance Act--seek, recruit, and hire qualified
members of racial and ethnic minority groups and qualified women in order to further effective

" law enforcement by increasing their ranks within the sworn positions, as provided under 34
U.S.C. § 10382(c)(11). C

(11) If the Subrecipient applies for and receives a DOJ award under the STOP School Violence

. Act program, I assure as required by 34 U.S.C.' § 10552(a)(3), that it will maintain and report
such data, records, and information (programmatic and financial) as DOJ may reasonably
require.

- 1 acknowledge that a materially false, fictitious, or fraudulent statement (or concealment or
omission of a material fact) in this certification, or in the application that it supports, may be the
subject of criminal prosecution (including under 18 U.S.C. §§ 1001 and/or 1621, and/or 34
U.S.C. §§ 10271-10273), and also may subject me and the Subrecipient to civil penalties and
administrative remedies for false claims or otherwise (including under 31 U.8.C. §§ 3729-3730
and 3801-3812). I also acknowledge that the Department’s awards, including certifications
provided in connection with such awards, are subject to review by the Departiment, including by
its Office of the Inspector General. : :

Executive Director

" Subrecipient Representative Signature Title of Subrecipient Representative
New Hampshire Legal Assistance (Subrecipient Name)  4// 7/ ?{&?;_
Signature Date ! </
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State of New Hampshire
Department of State

CERTIFICATE .

I, David M. Scanlan, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL
ASSISTANCE is a New Hampshire Nenprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New Hampshire on April 20, 1971. 1
further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State’s office have been received and is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 63969
Certificate Number: 0006194536

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto'set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 3rd day of April A.D. 2023

David M. Scanlan
Secretary of State




CERTIFICATE OF AUTHORITY'

I, Clalre Gagnon, hereby cectrfy that: _ -
~ (Name of the elected Officer of the Corporation/LLC; cannot be contract signatory)

1. | am a duly elected CIeﬂdSecretarlefﬁcer of New Hampshire Legal Agsistance
{Corporation/LLC Name)

2. The following Is a'true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of Directors/shareholders,-duly called;and
held on November 8, 2022, at which a quorum of.the-Directors/shareholders weretgr,e,'sentﬂand vating.

(Date)
VOTED: That n Dustin,'Executive; virector (may list more than one person)
" (Name and Title of Contract Signatory) ’
.is duly authorized on behalf of New: pshire -Asslatance to enter.into contracts or agreements-with the State
{Name. of Corporation/'LLC)

of New. Hampshire and any ‘of its agencies or departments and further Is authorized, io_axecgtp any and all
documents, agreements and other instruments, and -any_amendments, revisions, or modifications ‘thereto, which
may in his/her judgment be desirable or necessary to.effect the purpose of this vote.

3. | hereby certify that sald vote has not been amended or repealed and remains infull force and effect as of the
date of the contract/contract amendment to which this certificate is attached. This authority remains valid for
.thirty (30} days from the date of this Certificate of Authority. | further certify that it is understood-that the State of
New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person(s) listed above currently occupy the.
position(s) indicated and that they have -full authority to bind the corporation. To the-extent that there are any
limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the:corporation in_c cts with the State of New-Hampshire,
1all such limitations are expressly stated herein. '

Dated: ﬂ?%g;ﬁ |

Signature ofiElected Officer
Name: Claire Gagnon, CPA
“Title: Treasurer

STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE. .

03 i . iy 4

On this & day of . ,.who subscribed

and swore that the statements contained herein are true and accurate to the best of hisher knowledge and belief. 2

5 / ‘
i . e £
\\\‘\\‘-}\H\A g””’f//,'/ o Notary Public/Justice ofthe Peace

§°.*\“‘ | ’.;’I <% —
§ PgwEoen 2y My Commission expires: l/ 493’L5'0°“-‘-]‘
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AC@ ® ' DATE (MMDDAYYY)
| CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE 0410372023

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

MPORTANT: W the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy{ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the tarms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

PRODUCER . CONTACT  Heather Cuthbertson
FIAI/Cross Insurance PHONE  (603)669-3218 m’é Noy (603) 645-4331
1100 EIm Street ADDREss: Manch.certs@crossagency.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #
Manchester . NH 03101 INSURER A : Allmerica Financial Benafit 41840
INSURED INSURER B : Dequoia Ins Co 22985
New Hampshire Legal Assistance INSURER C
117 N. State Street INSURER D :
: INSURERE :
Concord *NH 03301 INSURER F :
COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER:  22-23 All Lines REVISION NUMBER:

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIOCD
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT, TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRAGCT OR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO WHICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TOALL THE TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLAIMS.

1{‘3.? . TYPE OF INSURANCE "?;p[: LD POLICY NUMBER (Mumnrwm &%%Wv?n LIMITS
¢| COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY ' ; EACH occunnenct—: s 2,000,000
[ DAMAGE TO RENTED .
I CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR PREMISES_{E- occurrence) 3 1,000,000
3 MED EXP (Any ona parson) 3 5,000
A Z2VHE60537 07/01/2022 | 0710312023 [ personaL e ADviNgURY | s 2000.000
GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER: GENERAL AGGREGATE s 4,000,000
poucy || "B% [ woc ' PRODUCTS - COMPIOPAGG | 3 ncluded
OTHER: 3
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
| AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY _ (Ea accdent) $ 2,000,000
ANY AUTO BODILY INJURY (Par person} $
[~ | owNED SCHEDULED :
AL oy - s Z2VHB60537 07/01/2022 | 07/01/2023 | BODILY INJURY (Por sccident | §
S| HIRED HON-OWNED PROPERTY DAMAGE s
| N AUTOS ONLY AUTOS ONLY ¢ | (Per accident)
o $
X umsreLtawas | X oeccur EACH OCCURRENCE s 1,000,000
A EXCESS LIAB e — Z2VHBE0537 07/01/2022 | 071012023 [ poorecare s 1,000,000
DED | [ RETENTION § . ] - ; 3
WORKERS COMPENSATION . ER OTH-
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY e X e | (& 505000
B [ AR O R EAECUTIVE KiA QWC1219985 (3a.) ME & NH 07/01/2022 | 0710172023 | Bk EACHACCIDENT e
[Mandntcry in nm ' E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE | 3 _1.000,000
If yas, desciibe u 1,000,000
DESCAIPTION GF OPERATIONS below E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LMIT_| § Y%
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS | LOGATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 104, Additions! Remarks Scheduls, may be attached If more space Is required)

Refar to pollcy for exclusionary endorsements and special provisions.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER - CANCELLATION

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN

New Hampshire Department of Justice ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

33 Capito! Street

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

Concord NH 03301 . W/ /[,/Mﬂ(

|

: ) © 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved. .
ACORD 25 (2016/03) The ACORD name and logo are reglstered marks of ACORD-




g’ IRS Department of the Treasury
Internal Rovenue Service

P.0. Box 2508 . In reply refer to: 02648459779
Cincinnati OH. 45201 June 11, 2008 LTR 4168C ED
02-0300897. DO00O0O0 00 000
00026861

BODC: TE

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
117 N STATE ST
CONCORD NH 03301-4407170

117451

Emplover Identification Number: 02-0300897
Person to Contact: MS. LEWIS
Toll Free Telephone Number: 1-877-829-56500

Dear TAXPAYER:

This is in response to your request of June 02, 2008, regarding your
tax-exempt status. y

Our records indicate that a determination ietter was issued in
SEPTEMBER 1971, that recognized yvou as exempt from Federal income tax,
and discloses that vou are currently exempt under section 501(c)(3)

of the Internal Revenue Code.

Our records aiso indicate you are not a privafe foundation within the
meaning of section 509(a) of the Code because vou are described in
section 50%(Ca)(2),

Donors may deduct contributions to vou as provided in section 170 of
the Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, transfers, or gifts to you or
for vour use are deductible for Federal estate and gift tax purposes
if they meet the applicable provisions of sections 2055, 2106, and
2522 of the Code. '

If vou have any questions, please call ‘'us at the telephcne number
shown in the heading of this letter.

Sincerely vours,

Michele M. Sullivan, Oper. Mgr.
Accounts Management Operations I
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§VACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACGOUNTANTS

- T s 608 Chestiwut Street = Marichester, New Hampshire:03104
& COMPANY PC (603) 622-7070; + Taxi (603) 622-1452 + www.yachonclukay.com

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

-Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements '
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (a
nonprofit organization), which comprise the statements of financial position as of December 31, 2022 and
2021, and the related statements of activities, functional expenses, and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the changes in its net assets and
its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller Genera! of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our
report. We are required to be independent of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. and to meet our other
ethical résponsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audits. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinions.

/-

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Legal Assistance,
Inc.'s ability to continue as a going concern within one year after the date that.the financial statements are
available to be issued.



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally acceptcd auditing standards and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the
aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements. -

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted audmng standards and Government Auditing
Standards, we:

e Exercise professi.ona] judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

o  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements, '

s Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters
that we identified during the audit. '

Supplementary Information

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole.
The accompanying combining statements of financial position and activities are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements. Additionally, the accompanying
schedule of expenditures of federal awards, as required by Title 2 U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part
200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards,

is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The information has been subjected
to the auditing procedures apphed in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other
additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of



America. In our opinion, the combining statements of financial position and activities and the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the financial -
statements as a whole. ‘ ' '

3

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated March 29, 2023
on our consideration of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of
internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide
an opinion on the effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s intemnal control over financial
reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control
over financial reporting and compliance. '

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 29, 2023 -



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASélSTANCE, INC.
Statements of Financial Position
December 31, 2022 and 2021

. ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS: ’

Cash and equivalents

Cash, restricted

Investments

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable, net

Prepaid expenses

Security deposits '

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Contributions receivable
Right-of-use assets
Property and equipment, net
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS-

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES: |
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Depasits held for'others
Refundable advances
Current portion of lease liability
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:
‘Lease liability
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES
TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:
Without donor restrictions:
Undesignated
‘Board designated operating reserve
With donor restrictions:
Purpose restrictions
Time restrictions for future periods
TOTAL NET ASSETS

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

See notes to financial statements
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2022 2021
§ 1,785,771 § 1,536,814
15,001 13,531
765,198 800,006
1,022,250 2,086,898
39,344 6,062
70,931 70,245
13,925 13,925
4,612,420 4,527,481
5,000
726,261
248,731 215,082
979.992 215,082
§ 5592412 § 4742563
$ 100,167 $. 58692
478,464 326,498
15,001 13,531
19,516
124,191
737.339 398,721
602,070
602.070 :
1.339,409 398,721
1,686,832 1,450,162
200,000 650,000
573,616 795,725
1,292,555 1,447,955
4,353,003 4,343,842
$ 5592412 S 4742563




NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Statements of Activities
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS
SUPPORT AND REVENUE:
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - [OLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other
Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services
Contributions - Nonfinancial assets
Case revenue
Miscellaneous
Investment income (loss)
Net assets reieased from donor restrictions
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

EXPENSES:
Program services:
Domestic violence project
Housing justice project
Justice in aging project
Public benefits
Immigrant justice project
Youth law project
Other civil legal services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Fund raising
Management and general
Total supporting services
TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
"WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other
Net assets released from donor restrictions
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January 1
NET ASSETS - December 31

See notes to financial statements
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2022 2021
$ 279700 § 301,408
2,730,383 2,261,637
17,011 16,962
185,981 356,891
457,982 444,058
100,112 118,078
20,866 13,941

48,677

(21,240) 10,324
1,867,997 1,555,141
5,687,469 5,078,440
866,917 1,053,960
1,321,753 893,352
521,358 553,199
483,137 611,432
314,758 223,185
' 165,783 113,561
609,040 711,968
4,282,746 4,160,657
295,712 267,828
822,341 774,899
1,118,053 1,042,727
5,400,799 5,203,384
286,670 (124,944)
186,250 215,292
996,252 1,024,869
88,579 28,960
219,407 682,774
(1,867,997) (1,555,141)
(377,509) 396,754
©(90,839) 271,810
4,343,842 4,072,032
S 4,343,842

$ 4,253,003



Housing Justice Immigrant Other Management

Justice in Aging Benefits Justice Youth Law Civil Legal and Combined
s 760,220 $ 282459 S 310997 % 186053 $ 108,627 § 393320 § 2,562,606 $ 107991 $ 553,340 5 661,331 $ 3223937
59,677 22,173 24413 14,605 8,527 31,407 201,695 8,045 43,227 51,272 252,967
143,682 53,385 58,778 35,164 20,531 74,408 484,404 21,833 100,469 £22,302 605,706
55,609 20,661 22,749 13,609 7.946 28,771 187,450 49,057 49,057 236,507
7.0?'3 2,628 2,894 1,731 1,011 3,660 23,844 3,631 3,633 27,477
15,712 4,238 3222 1,928 1,136 2,582 34,215 23,957 6,090 30,047 64,262
13,159 4,889 5383 5,208 "1,880 6,808 48,885 48,885
' 103,361 56,514 375717 18,162 11,253 40,746 356,444 500 51,498 51,998 408,442
2,976 5,166 1,475 3,290 50 269 15,345 i 15,345
7,048 1,443 1,913 2,206 480 1,738 18,100 1,025 3,079 4,104 22,204
“T9 2,402 2,187 2,797 764 2,766 21,699 1,878 1,878 23,577
8,724 3,242 3,569 2,135 1,247 4,514 29,409 2,237 2,237 31,646
1,264 470 517 09 181 654 4,261 726 726 4,987
2,400 1,065 o87 1,224 341 1,235 8,927 355 355 9,282
110,608 53,500 6,317 210,198 210,198
13,486 3,543 2,534 3978 433 1,568 39,492 442 887 1,329 40,821
87,803 87,803 87,803
983 165 . 402 241 140 3,800 6,605 44,116 718 44,834 51,439
8,652 3,215 3,540 2,118 1,236 4,477 29,167 . 5,147 5,147 34,314
$ 1,321,753 § 521,358 8 483,037 § 314758 5 165783 § 609,040 § 4,282,746 § 295712 §  822,34] $ 1,118,053 $ 5,400,799

A

See notes to financial statements
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Borilng Services

= Bup
Housing Justice . Immigrant Other Management
Justice in Aging Benefis Justice Youth Law Civil Legal and Combined
§ 551,802 S 338048 5 406EI1 S 148312 5 75051 0§ 437374 0§ 261,225 5§ 97819 5 514581 § 612400 5 3,223,625
39,840 24,407 29,372 10,492 5419 31,058 188,01t 7,158 50,482 57,640 245,651
92316 56,553 68,059 24,311 12,556 71,847 435,534 16,266 96,407 112,673 548,204
36,674 23,070 27,763 9917 5,122 33,066 178,204 4 51,308 51,398 229,602
3,769 1629 4,367 1,560 806 5,202 28,033 3,548 3,548 31,581
5,759 3,623 4,360 1,557 804 5,192 27,984 © 22,678 4237 26,912 54,896
8,744 5.501 6,619 2,364 1,221 7,884 42487 - 42,487
66.441 41,796 50,297 17.966 9279 59,908 322,847 890 39,712 40,602 363,449
1,088 1,350 530 3,360 409 1,743 14,227 14,227
1,66 2,303 -2, 990 sil 3,301 17,789 1,000 1,262 2,292 20,081
"4,187 2,615 3,147 1,124 581 3,748 20,200 50 1,938 1,988 22,188
5,568 3.502 4,215 1,506 778 4.99% 27,035 | _ 1,888 1,888 28,923
831 523 629 225 116 FIT I 4,038 " 643 . 643 4,681
1812 1,140 1,371 490 253 1,634 8,804 5,804
64,830 43,143 1,096 173,356 173,356
3,238 1477 499 1,589 540 2,307 18,771 92 299 389 - 19,160
) 94,319 _ 94,319 94,319
8 517 622 ; 222 15 . 741 3,993 27,561 2,497 30,058 34,051
] . 38,122 38,122 5,977 5977 44,099

5 893,352 $ 553,199 5 611432 § 223,185 §_ 113561 § 711968 §$ 4,160,657 S 267,828 5 71743899 $ 1,042,727 § 5,203,384

See notes to financial statements
7



NEW HAMPSHiRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, lNC.
Statements of Cash Flows
For the Years En_ded December 31, 2022 and 2021

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Change in net assets :
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Depreciation

Reduction in carrying amount of right-of-use assets

Unrealized losses in investments
Net effect of changes in:

-Grants and contracts receivable
Contributions receivable, net
Prepaid expenses

~ Security deposits
Accounts payable
Accrued expenses
Deposits held for others
Refundable advances
Lease liability

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of investments

Net cash provided (used) in investing activities

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Net cash provided (used) for financing activities

NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS

CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - January |
CASH AND EQUIVALENTS - December 31

Non-Cash Supplemental Disclosures:
In-kind donations received
In-kind expenses
Right-of-use assets upon ASC 842 implementation:
Operating leases

Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow Information:
Operating cash outflows from operating leases

See notes to financial statements
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2022 2021
$ (90839) § 271,810
34,314 44,099
161,478
34,808
170,637 "(331,547)
(44.271) 6,660
(686) (62,422)
(75)
41,475 (24,394)
151,966 25,673
1,470 (19,892)
19,516
(161,478)
318,390 (90,088)
(67,963) " (7,395)
(450,006)
(67.963). (457,401)
250,427 (547,489)
1,550,345 2,097,834
$ 1800772 $ 1,550,345
$ 100112 § 118078
$ (100,112) § (118,078)
$ 887739
$ (194,354



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 1--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUN'_I‘ING POLICIES

Nature of Activities

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (NHLA) is a non-profit organization incorporated in 1971. NHLA
provides civil legal aid, working alongside clients who have low income and need help with legal
problems impacting basic human needs. Services range from basic legal information, to personalized
legal advice, to representation in all of New Hampshire’s courts and before many local, state, and federal

administrative agencies. NHLA offers the following program services.

Domestic Violence Advocacy Project

The Domestic Violence Advocacy Project (DVAP) provides holistic civil legal services to victims and
survivors of domestic violence, stalking, human trafficking, and sexual assault. DVAP advocates
primarily represent victims and survivors seeking protective orders and related famlly law relief (such as
divorce and parenting rights). .

Housing Justice Prdiect and Other Housing Work

The Housing Justice Project (HJP) focuses on preventing homelessness by working alongside clients to
preserve their housing or access to safe and affordable housing options. The HJP handles evictions and
other cases involving Section 8 vouchers and federally assisted housing, property taxes, mobile home
- parks, and dangerous housing conditions (such as childhood lead poisoning). Through the Fair Housing
Project, NHLA investigates complaints of housing discrimination and represents people who are victims
" of housing discrimination. NHLA works with homeowners facing foreclosure and property.tax deeding.
The Energy and Utility Justice Project represents clients with issues related to utility disconnections and
arrears and problems accessing assistance programs such as the Electric Assistance Program, the
Weatherization Assistance Program, the Fuel Assistance Program, and energy efficiency programs.
3 AS

Benefits Project

The Benefits Project helps mdmduals with disabilities obtain Social Security Disability Insurance
(SSDI) Supplemental Security Income (SSI), and Aid to the Permanently and Totally Disabled (APTD)
benefits and access quality health care through the Medicaid and Medicare programs. Benefits Project
advocates also represent individuals and families with other assistance programs, such as the
Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program (SNAP, formerly the Food Stamp Program), various cash
benefits programs, unemployment insurance, and municipal welfare programs.

Justice in Aging Praject

NHLA provides legal services to older adults (persons age 60 or older) through the Justice in Aging
Project (JIA Project, formerly known as the Senior Law Project). JIA Project advocates assist older adults
with a variety of civil legal problems including illegal and abusive debt collection practices, financial
exploitation, long-term care resident rights, public and prwate housing problems, and denial of
government benefits and health care.



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Youth Law Project

NHLA's Youth Law Project (YLP) serves children and adolescents who are at risk of involvement with
the juvenile legal system and need civil legal help to access services necessary to graduate from high
school. YLP advocates work primarily on special education and school discipline issues.

Immigrar_lt Justice Project

The Immigrant Justice Project (IJP) provides immigration legal services. [JP advocates focus on cases in
which a person is eliglble for asylum or other humanitarian immigration relief, as well as cases involving
relief for victims of crime, including children. Through our Removal Defense Project, the IJP has a
special emphasis on working with clients who are facing removal and detained by Immigration and
Customs Enforcement.

Accounting Policies

The accounting policies of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. (the ‘Entity’), conform to accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applicable to nonprofit entities except as
indicated hereafter. The following is a summary of significant accounting policies.

Basis of A ccounting

The financial statements have been prépared on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the reporting pronouncements pertaining
to Not-for-Profit Entities included within the FASB Accounting Standards Codification. The Entity is
required to report information regardlng its financial position and activities according to the following net
asset classifications:

Net Assets Without Donor Restrictions — Net assets available for use in general operations and not subject

to donor or certain grantor restrictions. The governing board has designated, from net assets without
donor restrictions, net assets for an operating reserve.

Net Assets With Donor Restrictions - Net assets subject to donor or certain grantor imposed restrictions.
Some donor-imposed restrictions are temporary in nature, such as those that will be met by the passage of
time or other events specified by the donor. Donor-imposed restrictions are released when a restriction
expires, that is, when the stipulated time has elapsed, when the stipulated purpose for which the resource
was restricted has been fulfilled, or both.

Recognition of Donor Restrictions

i .
Contributions are recognized when the donor makes a promise to give to the Entity that is, in substance,
unconditional. The Entity reports contributions restricted by donors as increases in net assets without
donor restrictions if the restrictions expire (that is, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose
restriction is accomplished) in the reporting period in which the revenue is recognized. All other donor

restricted contributions are reported as increases in net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC. ,
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

nature of the restrictions. When a restriction expires, net assets with donor restrictions are reclassified to
net assets without donor restrictions and reported in the statements of activities as net assets released from
restrictions. '

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash on hand and other cash accounts with a maturity of 90 days or
less. For purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of the following:

2022 2021
As presented on the Statements of Financial Position -
Cash and equivalents : £ 1,785,771 $ 1,536,814
Cash, restricted 15,001 13,531

$ 1,800,772 $ 1,550,345

Investments

Investments, which consist of brokered certificates of deposit, are reported at thejr fair values in the
statements of financial position. Net investment return/(loss) is reported in the statements of activities and
consists of interest income, and unrealized gains and losses, less external and direct internal investment
expenses. .

Contributions Receivable

Unconditional promises to give (pledges) are recorded as received and are considered available for use
unless specifically restricted by the donor. Amounts received that are designated for future periods or
restricted by the donor for specific purposes are reported as net assets with donor restrictions, for either
- time or purpose. Unconditional promises to give due in the next year are reflected as current promises to
give and are recorded as their fair value. Unconditional promises to give due in subséquent years are
_ reflected as long-term promises to give and are recorded at the present value. Conditional pledges are
recognized only when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met and the pledges become
unconditional. ‘ ' ' :
Contributions receivable at December 31, 2021 are current and expected to be collected within one year.
Contributions receivable at December 31, 2022 are expected to be collected as follows:

Year Ended

December 31
2023 5 40,650
2024 5,000

$ 45,650

Bad Debts

The Entity uses the reserve method for accounting for bad debts. It is the Entity’s policy to charge off
uncollectible receivables when management determines the receivable will not be collected. Contributions
receivable at December 31, 2022 and 2021 are recorded net of an allowance for uncollectible pledges of |
$1,750. ‘ !

o

11



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment is recorded at cost for purchased items and at fair value for donated items as of
_ the date of donation. Property and equipment is summarized as follows:

2022 2021
Land $ 10,000 £ 10,000
Work in Progress . 42,029
Building and improvements 484,233 474,993
Leasehold improvements 2,050 2,050
Equipment 309,447 298,639

847,759 - 785,682
Less: Accumulated Depreciation (599,028) (570,600)

$ 248,731 $ 215,082

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method covering estimated three to ten-year lives for
equipment, seven to forty-year lives for the building and improvements, and over the life of the related
lease for leasehold improvements. Expenditures for repairs and maintenance are éxpensed when incurred
and betterments with a useful life in excess of three years are capitalized.

Depreciation experise for the years ending December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $34,314 and $44,099,
respectively.

Deposits Held for Others

Deposits held for others consist of funds that are held for the express purpose of third-party individuals
. and organizations and are therefore not available to support the Entity’s own programs.

Leases

The Entity leases office space (operating lease) in various locations across the State of New Hampshire.
The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease is made at the lease’s inception. Under ASC 842,
a contract is (or contains) a lease if it conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration. Control is defined under the standard as having both the right to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset and the right to direct the use of the
asset. Management only reassesses its determination if the terms and conditions of the contract are
changed. '

Operating leases are included in operating lease right-of-use (ROU) assets, other current liabilities, and an
operating lease liability on the balance sheet.

ROU assets represent the right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, and lease liabilities represent
the obligation to make lease payments. Operating lease ROU assets and liabilities are recognized at the
lease commencement date based on the present value of the future minimum lease payments over the
lease term. The operating leases did not provide an implicit interest rate, therefore the Entity uses their
incremental borrowing rate based on the information available at the lease commencement date in
determining the present value of lease payments. Lease expense for operating lease payments is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

12



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Revenue and Revenue Recognition

The Entity recognizes contributions when cash is received. Special events, donations, and other income
are recorded as revenues as received. Conditional promises to give, that is, those with a measurable
performance or other barrier and a right of return, are not recognized until the conditions on which they
depend have been met.

The Entity also has revenue derived from cost-reimbursable federal and state. contracts and grants, which
are conditional upon certain performance requirements and/or incurrence of allowable qualifying
expenses. Amounts received are recognized as revenue without donor restrictions when the Entity has
incurred expenditures in compliance with the specific contract or grant provisions. Amounts received
prior to incurring qualifying expenditures are reported as refundable advances in the statements of
financial position. Due to fixed price contracts, at any time the Entity may receive amounts in advance of
qualifying expenditures, in which case, the amount is recorded as a refundable advance liability.

Case Revenue

The Entity receives a regular stream of case revenue from fees in Social Security and SSI disability cases.
These fee awards must be approved by the Social Security Administration Administrative Law Judge.
From time to time the Entity also receives larger attorney fee awards in individual and class action cases.
These class action fee awards are episodic, and it is not possible to predict in advance their amounts or the
dates they will be received. Accordingly, case revenue is recognized when cash is received.

Donated Services

The Entity receives donated professional services from a variety of part-time volunteers and interns in the
form of administrative assistance, as well as paralegal and legal services. The estimated fair value of these
donations is recorded as revenue and expenses in the statements of activities,

Fund Raising Activities

Fund raising expenses represent the allocated costs of the Campaign for Legal Services (See Note 15).
Distributions of campaign donations to the Entity’s campaign partner agency have been included as
fundraising expense because the Entity has an agreement to distribute these funds. These are not typical,
out-of-pocket operating expenses of the Entity.

Functional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of program and supporting services activities-have been summarized on a functional basis in the
statements of activities. The statements of functional expenses present the natural classification detail of
expenses by function.

The financial statements report certain categories of expenses that are attributed to more than one
program or suppomng function. Accordmgly, indirect costs have been allocated among the programs and
supporting services benefited, based prlmarlly on percentage allocations calculated based on hours
worked (time and effort). The expenses that are allocated include payroll taxes, employee benefits,
occupancy, office supplies and expenses, postage, equipment rental and maintenance, communications,
professional library, insurance, dues and fees, contract services, travel, and depreciation, which are
allocated on the basis of time and effort, as noted previously.

13



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
. NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

Income Taxes

The Entity-is exempt from Federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code
and is also exempt from State of New Hampshire income taxes and, therefore, has made no provision for
Federal or State income taxes. In addition, the Entity has been determined by the Internal Revenue
Service not to be a "Private Foundation" within the meaning of Section 509(a) of the Code. The Entity is
annually required to file a Return of Organization Exempt from Income Tax (Form 990) with the IRS.
FASB Accounting Standards Codification Topic 740 entitled Accounting for Income Taxes requires the
Entity to report uncertain tax positions for financial reporting purposes. The Entity had no uncertain tax
positions as of December 31, 2022 or 2021 and, accordingly does not have any unrecognized tax benefits
that need to be recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles géneral]y accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, and accrued expenses are carried in the
financial statements at amounts which approximate fair value due to the inherently short-term nature of
the transactions. The fair values determined for financial instruments are estimates, which for certain
accounts may differ significantly from the amounts that could be realized upon immediate liquidation.

Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial
statements to maintain consistency between periods presented. The reclassifications had no impact on
' previously reported net assets.

NOTE 2--ADOPTION OF ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

In February 2016, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) issued guidance (Accounting
Standards Codification [ASC] 842, Leases) to increase transparency and comparability among
organizations by requiring the recognition of right-of-use (ROU) assets and lease liabilities on the balance
sheet. Most prominent among the changes in the standard is the recognition of ROU assets and lease
liabilities by lessees for those leases classified as operating leases: Under the standard, disclosures are
required to meet the objective of enabling users of financial statements to assess the amount, timing, .and
uncertainty of cash flows arising from leases.

The Entity adopted the standard effective January 1, 2022, and recognized and measured leases existing
at, or entered into after, January 1, 2022 (the beginning of the period of adoption) through a cumulative .
effect adjustment, with certain practical expedients available. Lease disclosures for the year ended
December 31, 2021, are made under prior lease guidance in FASB ASC 840.

14



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
- NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

As a result of the adoption of the new lease standard, the Entity recognized operating right-of-use assets
and a lease liability of $887,739. The lease liability represents the present vaiue of the remaining lease
payments discounted using the Entity’s incremental borrowing rate of 3.75%. There was no cumulative
effect adjustment to the opening balance of net assets required.

NOTE 3--LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY

The Entity regularly monitors the availability of resources required to meet its operating needs and other
contractual commitments, while also striving to maximize the investment of its available funds. Financial
assets in excess of daily cash requirements are invested in brokered certificates of deposit.

The following table reflects the Entity’s financial assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, reduced by
amounts that are not available to meet general expenditures within one year of the statement of financial
position date because of donor and other restrictions or internal board designations. Amounts not
available include the board designated operating reserve. In the event the need arises to utilize the board
designated reserve funds for liquidity purposes, the reserves could be drawn upon ‘through board
resolution. The Entity has a $500,000 line of credit available to meet cash flow needs if needed.

Financial assets available for general expenditure, reduced by donor or other restrictions limiting their
use, within one year of the statement of financial position date, comprise the following:

; 2022 2021
Cash and equivalents $ 1,785,711 $ 1,536,814
Investments 765,198 800,006
Grants and contracts receivable 1,922,250 2,086,898
Contributions receivable, net 44,344 6,062
Total Financial Assets 4,517,563 4,429 780
Less: o
Noncurrent contributions (5,000) -
Net assets with donor restrictions (1,866,171) (2,243,680)
Board designated operating reserve {700,000) {650,000)
Financial Assets Available to Meet Cash'Needs -
for General Expenditures Within One Year $ 1,946,392 $ 1,536,100

NOTE 4--SIGNIFICANT CONCENTRATIONS OF CREDIT RISK

The Entity maintains bank deposits at financial institutions with local branches located in New
Hampshire. The Entity’s cash balances are insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC)
up to a total of $250,000 for all cash checking and sweep accounts. The Entity has entered into
" agreements with the financial institutions to move funds in excess of FDIC limits into insured cash sweep
accounts. Funds held in the insured cash sweep accounts are placed into FDIC insured deposit accounts
with other financial institutions throughout the United States. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Entity’s bank deposits were fully insured. '

—



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL 'ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 5—~-INVESTMENTS
Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction in the principal, or most advantageous, market at the measurement date under current market
conditions regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
technique. The Entity reports under the Fair Value Measurements pronouncements of the FASB
Accounting Standards Codification (FASB ASC 820-10), which establishes a framework for measuring
fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs of valuation
techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted quoted prices
in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level I measurement) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (level 3 measurements). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described
below.

Level 1 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets or
liabilities in active markets that the Entity has the ability to access at the measurement date.

Level 2 — Inputs to the valuation include:

» Quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities in active markets;
e Quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in markets that are not active;
¢ Inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability;
* Inputs that are derived principally from or corroborated by observable market data by
correlation or other means. '
If the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the Level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and mgmﬁcant to the fair value
measurement.

In some cases, the inputs used to measure the fair value of an asset or a liability might be categorized
within different levels of the fair value hierarchy. In those cases, the fair value measurement is
categorized in its entirety in the same level of the fair value hierarchy as the lowest level input that is
significant to the entire measurement. Assessing the significance of a particular input to entire
measurement requires judgment, taking into account factors specific to the asset or liability. The
categorization of an asset within the hierarchy is based upon the pricing transparency of the asset and
does not necessarily correspond to our assessment of the quality, risk, or liquidity profile of the asset or
liability.

A significant portion of the Entity’s investments is in brokered certificates of deposit. The brokered
certificates of deposit are valued by the custodians of the securities using pricing models based on credit
quality, time to maturity, stated interest rates, and market-rate assumptions, and are classified within
Level 2.

The following tables set forth by level, within the fair value hierarchy, the Entity’s assets measured at fair
value on a recurring basis, as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

-

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2022

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Certificates of deposit $ 765,198 $ 765,198
Total Assets at Fair Value Y - $ 765,198 $ - $ 765,198

Assets at Fair Value as of December 31, 2021

Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total
Certificates of deposit $ 800,006 $ 800,006
Total Assets at Fair Value s - $ 800,006 $ - $ 800,006

NOTE 6—-GRANTS AND CONTRACTS RECEIVABLE

Grants and contracts receivable, by funding category, consist of the following at December 31, 2022 and
2021

. 2022 2021
State of New Hampshire and Federal - Departments and Agencies $ 1,372,666 $ 1,138,165
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA 223,500 258,348
United Way (various branches) 84,362 26,463
Foundations and Other 241,722 663,922

5 1,922,250 $ 2,086,898

NOTE 7--LEASE COMMITMENTS - PRIOR TO ADOPTION OF ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic
842) .

The below lease disclosures for the year ended December 31, 2021, were made under prior lease guidance
in accordance with FASB ASC 840, Leases.

The Entity leases its current Manchester, New Hampshire office building under an agreement that
commenced October 1, 2014 and which was amended through April 30, 2023. The Entity leases its
Concord, New Hampshire office under an agreement that commenced November 19, 2014 which was
extended, with new terms through November 18, 2024. The Entity leases its Berlin, New Hampshire
office under an agreement that commenced June 1, 2017 and was extended through May 31, 2021.
Effective April 2021 Berlin offices were relocated and a new lease commenced for May 26, 2021,
expiring May 31, 2024. The Entity leases its Claremont, New Hampshire office on a month-to-month
basis. The general terms of the lease extend through December 2022. The terms of all of the Entity’s
leases, with the exception of the Claremont office, contain a provision that allow the Entity to terminate
the lease prior to the end of the lease term in the event of a funding reduction. Rental expense for leases
was $191,379 for the year ended December 31, 2021.

NOTE 8--LEASE LIABILITY —- AFTER ADOPTION OF ASU 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842)

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the Entity has four operating leases for office buildings
throughout the State of New Hampshire, as previously noted (See Note 7). Lease options that the Entity
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 ™~

believes are reasonably certain to exercise are included in the measurement of the lease assets and
liabilities. The lease term is used for the amortization/depreciation life of lease assets.
The maturities of the lease liability as of December 31, 2022 are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31 Operating
2023 $ 149,023
2024 127,431
2025 108,327
2026 109,644
2027 110,581
Thereafter 214,696
Total Lease payments 820,102
Less: Interest (93,841)
Present value of Lease liability $ 726,261

The following summarizes the line items in the statements of activities which include the components of
lease expense and costs for the year ended December 31, 2022;

2022
Operating lease expense included in program
services and management and general expenses A l94=354

The following additional information is deemed relevant and useful as the Entity has four operating leases
as of December 31, 2022.

2022
Weighted-average remaining lease term 6.43 years
Weighted-average discount rate 3.75%

NOTE 9-ACCRUED VACATION LEAVE

Employees earn annual vacation leave as they provide services. Pursuant to Entity policy, employees may
accumulate, subject to certain limitations, unused vacation leave, and upon termination of employment be
compensated for such amounts at current rates of pay. Employees may not “cash out” their accumulated
vacation leave at any time during their employment. Accumulated earned vacation leave at
December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $138,761 and $139,393, respectively, and has been included as part of
the ‘Accrued expenses’ liability in the statements of financial position.

NOTE 10-NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets with donor restrictions have been restricted for the following as of December 31, 2022 and
2021:



NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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2022 2021
Subject to expenditure for specified purpose:
Civil legal services : $ 54,217 3 65,706
Fair Housing legal services 243,841 304,869
Aging related legal services 167,905 42,746
Health Care Access 21,102 176,277
Medical legal partnership 15,991
Consumer protection 48,149 50,393
COVID-19 2,411 29,159
Immigration 20,000 126,575
. 573,616 795,725
Subject to expenditure for specified period and purpose:
Civil legal services 1,070,612 1,091,755
Aging related legal services 65,000 260,000
COVID-19 28,500 56,200
Immigration 40,000
Health Care Access 3,000
Medical legal partnership 74,143
Campaign 51,300
1,292,555 1,447,955
Total Net Assets With Donor Restrictions $ 1,866,171 $ 2,243,680

NOTE 11--REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS

The following tables provide information about significant changes in the contracts with customers in
effect for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021:

Contract Receivables
2022 2021
Contracts receivable, beginning of year $ - $ 27,000
Restatement impact _ (9,833)
New contracts awarded . 29,000
Cash received (29,000) (17,167)
Contracts receivable, end of year $ - $ -
Net Assets
2022 2021
Donor Restricted Net Assets, beginning of year b - $ 17,828
Restatement impact (9,833)
New contracts awarded 29,000
Revenue recognized on contracts (29,000) (7,995)
Donor Restricted Net Assets, end of year ¥ = b -
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NOTE 12--CONTRIBUTED NONFINANCIAL ASSETS

The Entity recognized contributed nonfinancial assets within revenue and program expenses, which did
not have donor-imposed restrictions. Contributed services recognized comprise of professional services
from paralegals and attorneys advising on various legal matters. Contributed services are valued and are
reported at the estimated fair value in the financial statements based on current rates for similar legal
services provided by the Entity.

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, contributed nonfinancial assets recognized within the
statements of activities included:

2022 2021
Voluneer Paralegal hours $ 41,837 s 71,697
Volunteer Attorney hours 58,275 46,381
Contributions - Nonfinancial assets $ 100,112 $§ 118,078

NOTE 13--PENSION PLAN

The Entity operates a 401(k)-retirement plan, and under the plan’s “safe harbor” rules, the Entity
contributes 3% of all employees’ salaries to the plan. Under the terms of the plan, the Entity has the
discretion to make a higher level of contribution to the plan but is not obligated. For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Entity’s discretionary contribution was up to a 2% match of
contributing employees’ salaries. In addition, the Entity contributed an additional employer non-elective
discretionary contribution of 2% for all employees for the year ended December 31, 2022. Contributions
to the plan for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled $210,992 and $152,673, respectively.

NOTE 14—ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

For the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, approximately 30.2% and 28.8%, respectively, of total
support and revenue was derived from an appropriation from the State of New Hampshire. The
discontinuation or reduction of the State appropriation would likely result in a decrease in services
provided by the Entity, until alternative revenues could be obtained.

NOTE 15--CAMPAIGN FOR LEGAL SERVICES

In June 2005, the Entity assumed administration of the Campaign for Legal Services (the Campaign) from
the New Hampshire Bar Foundation. The Campaign is a joint fundraising effort on behalf of the Entity
and 603 Legal Aid, a not-for-profit entity providing civil legal services to low-income people in the State
of New Hampshire. Revenue and expenses of these activities have been reported as contributions received
and made, and as fund raising expenses in these financial statements. For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021 the Campaign had total unrestricted revenue and support of $457,982 and
$443,676, respectively, and total expenses, excluding distributions, of $207,909 and $173,509,
respectively.

Distributions to the Campaign partners during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 totaled
$250,865 and $268,013, respectively. Distributions were allocated and made as follows for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021: the Entity received $163,062 and $173,694, respectively, and 603
Legal Aid received $87,803 and $94,319, respectively.
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
For the Years Ended December 31, 2022 and 2021

NOTE 16--LINE OF CREDIT

The Entity has an available line of credit with its primary bank for up to $500,000. For the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the interest rate was 8.00% and 3.75%, respectively. No amounts have
been drawn on the line of credit and there was no outstanding balance due as of December 31, 2022 or
2021.

NOTE 17--CONTINGENCIES

The Entity participates in a number of Federal and State assisted grant programs and contracts. Such
programs may be subject to financial and compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives. The
amounts, if any, of expenses which may be disallowed by a grantor agency cannot be determined at this

time, although the Entity expects such amounts, if any, to be immaterial.

NOTE 18--SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 29, 2023 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.
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SCHEDULE |

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Pass-Through
Assistance Entity
Federal Grantor / Pass-Through Listing Identifying Total Federal Expenditures to
Grantor / Program or Cluster Title Number Number Expenditures Subrecipients
DEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT
Direct Award Program
Fair Housing Initiatives Program 14.408 4FPENI90019 £ 175232
Fair Housing Initiatives Program ! 14,408 #FPEI210005 233,533
408,765 $ -
Direct Award Program
Education and Outreach Initiatives ) 14.416 #FEOI20033 36,261
Education and Qutreach Initiatives 14.416 #FEOI210075 20,276
56,537 -
Direct Award Program
Private Enforcement Initiatives 14.418 #FPE12122031 178,468 -
Total Department of Housing and Urban Development . 643,770
DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE
Pass Through Payments from the County of Strafford, New Hampshire
Justice Systems Response to Families 16.021 N/A 19,905 -
Direct Award Program .
Legal Assistance for Victims 16.524 15J0VW.22-GG-00297 12,228
Pass Through Payments from the New Hampshire Department of Justice '
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 #2021VOC71 42,371
Crime Victim Assistance 16.575 #2022v0OC22 320,857
363,228 37,420
Pass Through Payments from the New Hampshire Department of Justice
Violence Against Women Formula Grants ~ ~ 16.588 #2022VAWI7 45,000 -
Total Department of Justice 440,361 37,420
DEPARTMENT GF THE TREASURY
Pass Through Payments from the State of New Hampshire Governor's Office
COVID-19 - Emergency Rental Assistance Program 21.023 N/A 241,379 34,611
Pass Through Payments from the County of Rockingham, New Hampshire
COVID-19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21,027 N/A 7,589 -
Pass Through Payments from the State of New Hampshire Governor's Office
COVID-19 - Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds 21.027 2023ARPVS20 425935
433,524 -
Total Department of the Treasury 674,903 34611
DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH AND HUMAN SERVICES
Pass Through Payments from New Hampshire Bureau of Elderly
and Adult Services
Aging Cluster:
Special Programs for the Aging - Title I11, Part B - Grants
for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044 #17AANHT3SS 31,810
Special Programs for the Aging - Title 111, Part B - Grants
for Supportive Services and Senior Centers 93.044  §§-2023-BEAS-02-LEGA 37472
Total Aging Cluster 69,282
Total Department of Health and Human Services : 69,282 -
Total Expenditures of Federal Awards $ 1,828,316 $ 72,031

See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

NOTE 1--BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (the “Schedule”) includes the federal
award activity of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. under programs of the federal government for
the year ended December 31, 2022. The information in this Schedule is presented in accordance with the
requirements of Title 2 US. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative
Requirements, Cost Principles, and Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance).
Because the Schedule presents only a selected portion of the operations of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc., it is not intended to and does not present the financial position, changes in net assets, or
cash flows of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

NOTE 2--SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The accompanying Schedule is presented using the accrual basis of accounting, which is described in
Note 1 to New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s financial statements. Such expenditures are recognized

fotlowing the cost principles contained in the Uniform Guidance, wherein certain types of expenditures
are not allowable or are limited as to reimbursements.

NOTE 3—-INDIRECT COST RATE

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. has not elected to use the 10-percent de minimis indirect cost rate
allowed under the Uniform Guidance.
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gVACHON CLUKAY CERTIFIED PUBLIC AGCOUNTANTS

608 Chestnut Stréet « Manchester, New Hampshire 03104
& CoMPANY PC (603) 6227070 » Fax: (603) 622-1452 + wwsw.vachonclukay.com

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc. (a nonprofit organization), which comprise New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s
statement of financial position as of December 31, 2022, and the related statements of activities, functional
expenses, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements, and have
issued our report thereon dated March 29, 2023. ;

Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered New Hampshire Legal
Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over financial reporting (internal control) as a basis for designing audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal contiol, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s
financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant
deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a
material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material
weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any
deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses
or significant deficiencies may exist that were not identified.
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Report on Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s financial
statements are free from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and
material effect on the financial statements. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncomplianice or other matters that are required to be reported
under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance
and the resuits of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with
Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly,
this communication is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 29, 2023
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM
AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE
REQUIRED BY THE UNIFORM GUIDANCE

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.

Report on Compliance for Each Major Federal Program
Opinion on Each Major Federal Program

We have audited New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance with the types of compliance
requirements identified as subject to audit in the OMB Compliance Supplement that could have a direct and
material effect on each of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s major federal programs for the year
ended December 31, 2022, New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s major federal programs are identified
in the summary of auditor’s results section of the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs.

In our opinion, New Hampshire Lega! Assistance, Inc. complied, in all material respects, with the
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major
federal programs for the year ended December 31, 2022.

Basis for Opinion of Each Major Federal Program

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the.
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and the audit requirements of Title 2
U.S. Code of Federal Regulations Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirements, Cost Principles, and
Audit Requirements for Federal Awards (Uniform Guidance). Our responsibilities under those standards
and the Uniform Guidance are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
Compliance section of our report.

We are required to be independent of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc. and to meet our other ethical
responsibilities, in accordance with relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on
compliance for each major federal program. Our audit does not provide a legal determination of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance with compliance requirements referred to above.

Responsibilities of Management for Compliance
Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements referred to above and for the design,
implementation, and maintenance of effective internal control over compliance with the requirements of

laws, statutes, regulations, rules, and provisions of contracts or grant agreements applicable to New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s federal programs.

26



Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether material noncompliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above occurred, whether due to fraud or error, and express an opinion
on New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance based on our audit. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore it is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing Standards, and the
Uniform Guidance will always detect material noncompliance when it exists. The risk of not detecting
material noncompliance resulting from fraud is higher than for that resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.
Noncompliance with the compliance requirements referred to above is considered material, if there is a
substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, it would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user of the report on compliance about New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance
with the requirements of each major federal program as a whole.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, Government Auditing
Standards, and the Uniform Guidance, we:

» Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

» ldentify and assess the risks of material noncompliance, whether due to fraud or error, and design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s compliance with the
compliance requirements referred to above and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances.

¢ Obtain an understanding of New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.’s internal control over
compliance relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances and to test and report on internal control over compliance in accordance with the
Uniform Guidance, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of New
Hampshire Legal Assistance, Inc.'s internal control over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion
is expressed.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and any significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in internal
control over compliance that we identified during the audit.

Report on Internal Control Over Compliance

A deficiency in internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned
functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a
federal program on a timely basis. A material weakness in internal control over compliance is a deficiency,
or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will
not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency in internal control
over compliance is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in intemnal control over compliance with
a type of compliance requirement of a federal program that is less severe than a material weakness in
internal control over compliance, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.
Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of Compliance section above and was not designed to identify all deficiencies
in internal control over compliance that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal
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control over compliance. Given these limitations, during our audit we did not identify any deficiencies in
internal control over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. However,
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies in internal control over compliance may exist that were not
identified.

Our audit was not designed for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control
over compliance. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing
of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the requirements of the Uniform
Guidance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Manchester, New Hampshire
March 29, 2023
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New Hampshire Lepgal Assistance, Inc.
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

Section I--Summary of Auditor’s Results
Financial Statements

Type of auditor’s report issued on whether the financial
statements audited were prepared in accordance with GAAP: Unmodified

Internal control over financial reporting:

Material weakness(es) identified? yes X _no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no
Federal Awards
Internal control over major federal programs:
Material weakness(es) identified? yes X__no
Significant deficiency(ies) identified? yes X none reported
Type of auditor’s report issued on compliance
for major federal programs: Unmodified
Any audit findings disclosed that are required to
be reported in accordance with 2 CFR 200.516(a)? yes X no
Identification of major federal program(s):
Assistance Listing Number(s) Name(s) of Federal Program or Cluster
16.575 Crime Victim Assistance
21.027 Coronavirus State and Local Fiscal Recovery Funds

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: $ 750,000

Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? X yes no
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Section II--Financial Statement Findings

There were no findings relating to the financial statements required to be reported by GAGAS.

Section III--Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

There were no findings and questioned costs as defined under 2 CFR 200.516(a).
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.

Combining Statement of Financial Position
December 31, 2022

CURRENT ASSETS:

ASSETS

Cash and equivalents

Cash, restricted

Investments

Grants and contracts receivable

Contributions receivable, net

Prepaid expenses
Security deposits
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

NONCURRENT ASSETS:
Contributions receivable

Right-of-use assets

Property and equipment, net

TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable
Accrued expenses

Deposits held for others
Refundable advances

Current portion of lease liability
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES:

Lease liability
TOTAL NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL LIABILITIES

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions:

Undesignated
Board designated operating reserve

With donor restrictions:
Purpose restrictions

Time restrictions for future periods

TOTAL NET ASSETS

New Hampshire

Campaign for

Lepal Assistance  Legal Services Eliminations Total
$ 1,524,506 $ 261,265 $ 1,785,771
15,001 15,001
. 765,198 765,198
1,922,250 1,922,250
182,514 38,900 $ (182,070) 39,344
70,134 797 70,931
13,925 13,925
4,493,528 300,962 (182,070} 4,612,420
5,000 5,000
726,261 726,261
248,731 248,731
074,992 5,000 - 979,992
$ 5,468,520 3 305,962 by (182,070) § 5,592412
s 41,959 5 240,278 $ (182,070) § 100,167
465,081 13,383 478,464
15,001 15,001
19,516 19,516
124,191 124,191
665,748 253,661 (182,070) 737,339
602,070 602,070
602,070 - - 602,070
1,267,818 253,661 (182,070) 1,339,409
1,685,831 1,00t 1,686,832
700,000 700,000
573,616 573,616
1,241,255 51,300 1,292,555
4,200,702 52,301 = 4,253,003
5,468,520 $ 305,962 $ (182,070y % 5,592,412

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS §
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Combining Statement of Financial Pesition
December 31,2021

New Hampshire Campaign for

Legal Assistance  Legal Services Eliminations Total
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS: ;

Cash and equivalents $ 1,419,447 3 117,367 $ 1,536,814

Cash, restricted 13,531 13,531

Investments 800,006 ; 800,006

Grants and contracts receivable 2,086,898 2,086,898

Contributions receivable, net 86,186 349 b (80,473) 6,062

Prepaid expenses 69,050 1,195 70,245

Security deposits 13,925 13,925
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 4,489,043 118,911 (80,473) 4,527,481

NONCURRENT ASSETS:

Property and equipment, net 215,082 215,082
TOTAL NONCURRENT ASSETS 215,082 - - 215,082
TOTAL ASSETS $ 4,704,125 $ 118,911 $ (80,473} § 4,742,563

LIABILITIES & NET ASSETS
CURRENT LIABILITIES:

Accounts payable S 25,993 $ 113,172 5 (80,473) % 58,692

Accrued expenses 322,509 3,989 326,498

Deposits held for others 13,531 13,531
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 362,033 117,161 (80,473) 398,721
TOTAL LIABILITIES 362,033 117,161 (80,473) 398,721

NET ASSETS:

Without donor restrictions: ‘
Undesignated 1,448,412 1,750 1,450,162
Board designated operating reserve 650,000 650,000

With donor restrictions:

Purpose restrictions 795,725 ' 795,725
Time restrictions for future periods 1,447,955 1,447,955
TOTAL NET ASSETS 4,342,092 1,750 - 4,343,842

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS $ 4,704,125 $ 118,911 $ {80,473y 3 4,742,563
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC,
Combining Statement of Activities " .
For the Year Ended December 31, 2022

New Hampshire  Campaign for

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IGLTA

Government grants and contracts

United Ways

Contributions - Foundations and Other

Contributions - Campaign for Legat Services

Contributions - Nonfinancial assets

Case revenue

Miscellaneous

Investment income (loss)

Net assets reteased from donor restrictions
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

EXPENSES:
Program services:
Domestic violence project
Housing justice project
Justice in aging project
Public benefits
Immigrant justice project
Youth law project
Other civil legal services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Fund raising
Management and general
Total supperting services
TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT DONOQOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - [OLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other
Net assels released from donor restrictions
INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January |
NET ASSETS - December 31

Legal Assistance Legal Services Eliminations Total
§ 279,700 $ 279,700
2,730,383 2,730,383
17,011 17,011
185,981 185,981
163,062 $ 457982 £  (163,062) 457,982
100,112 100,112
20,866 20,866
48,677 48,677
(21,283) 43 (21,240)
1,867,997 - 1,867,997
5,392,506 458,025 (163,062) 5,687,469
866,917 866,917
1,321,753 1,321,753
521,358 521,358
483,137 483,137
314,758 314,758
165,783 165,783
609,040 609,040
4,282,746 - - 4,282,746
458,774 (163,062) 295,712
822,341 822,341
822,341 458,774 {163,062) 1,118,053
5,105,087 458,774 {163,062) 5,400,799
287,419 (749) 286,670
186,250 186,250
996,252 996,252
88,579 88,579
- 168,107 51,300 219,407
(1,867,997} (1,867,997)
(428,809) 51,300 - (377,509
(141,390) 50,551 - (90,839)
4,342,092 1,750 - 4,343 842
$ 4,200,702 by 52,301 $ - $ 4,253,003
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE, INC.
Combining Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

. WNew Hampshire = Campaign for

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

SUPPORT AND REVENUE:

New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA

Government grants and contracts

United Ways

Contributions - Foundations and Other

Contributions - Campaign for Legal Services

Contributions - Nonfinancial assets

Case revenue

[nvestment income

Net assets released from donor restrictions
TOTAL SUPPORT AND REVENUE

WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

EXPENSES:
Progratn services:
Domestic violence project
Housing justice project
Justice in aging project
Public benefits
Immigrant justice project
Youth law project
Other civil legal services
Total program services
Supporting services:
Fund raising
Management and general
Total supporting services
TOTAL EXPENSES

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN NET ASSETS
WITHOUT DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGES IN NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS
New Hampshire Bar Foundation - IOLTA
Government grants and contracts
United Ways
Contributions - Foundations and Other
Net assets released from donor restrictions
INCREASE IN NET ASSETS
WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

CHANGE IN NET ASSETS

NET ASSETS - January |
NET ASSETS - December 31

Legal Assistance Legal Services Eliminations Total
3 301,408 $ 301,408
2,261,637 2,261,637
16,962 16,962
356,891 356,891
174,076 $ 443,676 § (173,694) 444 058
118,078 118,078
13,941 13,941
10,321 3 10,324
1,555,141 1,555,14]
4,808,455 443,679 (173,694) 5,078,440
1,053,960 1,053,960
893,352 893,352
553,199 553,199
611,432 611,432
223,185 223,185
113,561 113,561
711,968 711,968
4,160,657 - - 4,160,657
441,522 (173,694) 267,828
774,899 774,899
774,899 441,522 (173,694) 1,042,727
4,935,556 441,522 {173,694) 5,203,384
(127,101) 2,157 ; (124,944)
215,292 215,292
1,024,869 1,024,869
E 28,960 28,960
682,774 682,774
(1,555,141) (1,555,141)
196,754 - - 396,754
269,653 2,157. - 271,810
4,072,439 (407) - 4,072,032
$ 4,342,092 § 1,750 § $ 4,343,842
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE Board of Directors (Updated November

NAME Employment | Work Address
ALMONTE
HILARY g:;fl";d
ALVAREZ Medicine
JOHN T. Fidelity
BEARDMORE Investments
GEORGE DANA Retired
BISBEE attorney
(Chair)
DEBORAH Retired CPA
BUTLER
(Executive
Comimittee)
LAUREN SNOW gg:fﬁn
CHADWICK Association .
New
CATHERINE Hampshire
FLINCHBAUGH Public
Defender
CLAIRE H. Easterseals .
GAGNON NH :
(Treasurer)
MARGARET | Commle
GOODLANDER A '
ttorney
(leave of absence) General
ELIZABETH Community
GREENWOOD Bridges
Sheehan
COURTNEY HERZ | Phinney

Home Address

Preferred
_| Phone

|
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE Board of Directors (Updated November

Retired
DOUGLAS P. HILL attorney
ANNE JENNESs | Gallagher,
(Vice Chair) Callahan &
Gartrell, P.C.
Boyle,
QUINN KELLY Shaughnessy
& Campo PC
CRAIG & Phamarells
MCMAHON pC Enatetl
Attomey
3 New
BENJAMIN MING | Hampshire
House of
Reps.
SINDISO MNISI | Jeery &
WEEKS
-Boston
JOHN J. Retired farmer
PELLETIER, SR.
Bernstein Shur
TALESHA SAINT-
MARC
(Secretary)
e P
STREETER Inc ’
Orr & Reno,
ERIN VANDEN PA
BORRE

3
—

|
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NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE
FY 2024 ARPA Victim Services Award

Key Personnel

Name Job Title Annual Salary (FY % Paid Amount Paid from
2024 estimated) from this this Contract
Contract
Peggy Brick Staff Attormey - $88,073 100% $88,073
Jessica Erazo Staff Attoney $68,243 100% $68,243
Elyssa Willadsen | Staff Attorney $60,008 100% $60,008
Erin Jasina Project $70,263 70% $49,184
Director/Paralegal
Geoff Ketcham Managing Attorney $111,292 62% $69,001
Mary Krueger Staff Attorney $95,353 30% $28,606
Ruth Heintz Managing Attorney $119,333 3% $3,580




Mary Krueger, Esq. = .. 1
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Education,

- University of New Hampshire School of Law Keene State College
Concord, NH Keene, NH

J.D., 2006 B.A. Psychology, 1994
GPA 3.76, top 10% ' GPA 4.0

Robert M. Viles fellow, full scholarship " ‘Honors, summa cum laude

Licensed Vermont and New Hampslire Attorney

Member, Vermont Bar Assoclation, New Hampshire Bar Assoclation.

Work Experience

2019-present

2017-2019

2014-2017

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Claremont, NH
Staff Attorney

Advocate for low-income victim/survivors of domestic and sexual
violence and human trafficking in family law and related civil legal
matters including public housing, homelessness, town welfare, food
stamps, unemployment, consumer law, TANF and other public benefits.

Vermont Packinghouse LLC, Noith Springfield, VT
General Counsel

Work with General Manager on various business and legal issues. Ensure
regulatory compliance in areas of Federal and State law; manage
workers’ compensation claims and safety; conduct legal research;
participate in staff engagement activities; perform human resources
tasks; oversee company communications; strategic planning,.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, statewide, based in Claremont, NH
Deputy Director

Work with Executive Director as part of the Senior Management team to
manage statewide civil legal services law firm mission and vision;
manage NHLA programs, priorities, and staff to achieve organization
goals; oversee legal work, litigation, policy advocacy, staff development
and training, standards of practice and case management system; oversee
hiring process; oversight of personnel matters; oversee IT and
operations; input and decision-making responsibility on budget,
insurance, audits, retirement planning, purchasing and other fiscal
matters; oversee and update NHLA Policies and Procedures Manual;
oversee leases, vendor contracts, office maintenance needs; oversee staff
time and work duties; oversee client intake, client grievance procedures,
conflicts, income eligibility waivers; maintain relationships with partner
agencies; oversee internal and extemal wmmumcanons via press and
social media; manage individual case load.




2006-2014

2001-2003

1995-2001

<Volunteer Activities,

2016-present

2016-present

2012-2017

™ e

e —

Mary Krueger, Esq. < .+~

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Claremont, NH
Project Director, Domestic Violence Advocacy Project (DVAP); Staff
Attorney

Advocate for low-income victim/survivors of domestic and sexual
violence in family law and related civil legal matters; oversee and
coordinate DVAP activities including project attomey and paralegal
work; serve as the liaison to project partners and commumity groups such
as the New Hampshire Coalition Against Domestic and Sexual Violence,
New Hampshire’s Bar Association Pro Bono Program, domestic violence
crisis centers and shelters, New Hampshire's Legal Advice and Referral
Center, and New Hampshire Catholic Charities; responsible for drafling
federal and state grant applications and biennial grant reports; serve as
faculty on biennial statewide domestic violence trainings for pro bono
lawyers and crisis center advocates; serve on the New Hampshire
Governor’s Commission on Domestic and Sexual Violence and Human
Trafficking Commission; Advocate for clients on various legal issues
including public housing, homelessness, town welfare, food stamps,
unemployment, bankruptcy, TANF and domestic violence.

New Hampshire Public Radio, Concord, NH
Executive Producer, “The Exchange,” statewide daily public affairs

program.

Managed program, host, staff, schedule and overall vision; researched,
selected and assigned program topics; pre-interviewed and booked
program guests; wrote and edited copy; produced and edited recorded
elements; produced election coverage and other special projects.

New Hampshire Public Radio, Concord, NH

Producer, “The Exchange,” statewide daily public affairs program
Assistant Producer, “The Exchange,” statewide daily public afTairs
program.

Assistant Producer, “Perspectives,” daily half hour interview program.,
“Voter’s Voice” Election project coordinator, 1996 Presidential Primary.

Springfield Elementary Schools Parent Teacher Assoclation,
Springfield, VT

President; lead PTA in various efforts to improve Springfield schools;
engage parents and teachers in building strong educational systems and
experiences. :

Girl Scout Leader: Troop #51293, Springfield, VT
Lead girls in leaming, leadership, life, outdoor and business skills.

American Civil Liberties Union New Hampshire, Concord, NH
Board of Directors, Vice Chair



2007-2016

2007-2017

. Mary Krueger,Esq: - | '~ "

N A e

Executive committee, finance and economic justice committees and
other board duties.

Turning Points Network, Crisis Center, Claremont, NH

Board of Directors, Past Treasurer, Past President

Support agency’s current and future goals; fundraising, event planning;
participate in strategic planning; oversee agency budget in collaboration

" with executive committee and Director.

Access to Justice Commission, Concord, NH
Member, appointed by New Hampshire Supreme Court.



Erin P. Jasina

WORK EXPERIENCE

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE (NHLA)
Domestic Violence Advocacy Project Director October 2017-present

Responsible for training, mentoring, and supervising project staff, mcludmg seven attorneys, one paralegal,
and one administrative manager

Prepare Federal and State grant progress reports on an annual, biannual, and quartetly basis

Serve as point person for media and general public inquiries related to domestic violence and family law
issues .

Facilitate quarterly meetings of the Domestic Violence Advisory Council made up of project partners and
other key community stakeholders

Domestic Violence Advocacy Project Co-Director December 2014-October 2017

Paralegnl Advocate, Domestic Violence Advocacy Project January 2008-present

Asgist attorneys in the representation of domestic violence victims/survivors in family law related matters,
including divorce, parental rights & responsibilities, child support, and termination of parental rights
Provide counsel & advice, under the supervision of project attorneys, to clients of the Strafford County
Family Justice Center

Coordinate with domestic violence crisis centers statewide to focate attorneys within NHLA to represent
clients at final domestic violence protective order hearings

Coordinate statewide DV AP referral process with crisis centers, NH Bar Association’s Pro Bone Program,
and the Legal Advice & Referral Center

Assist attorneys with trial preparation by drafling court forms and pleadings, creating exhibit binders, and
preparing financial affidavits

Participate in the discovery process by obtaining and analyzing records from bank institutions and police
departments, and drafting answers to interrogatories

Maintain client contact and provide support throughout case process, including attendance at court hearings
Train crisis center advocates on safe and effective parenting plans

Provide advocacy to clients seeking emergency assistance from town local welfare offices

Conduct legal research using Westlaw, the Internet, and public records

NEW HAMPSHIRE LEGAL ASSISTANCE September 2013-present
Intern Coordinator

RHODE ISLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 2005-December 2007
Paralegal, Elder Abuse Unit and White Collar Crime Unit, Criminal Division

Responsible for the preparation and filing of motions, including answering discovery requests

Acted as a contact for the public to report and ask questions regarding elder abuse

Maintained statistics for all pending and disposed cases handled by the Elder Abuse Unit
Participated in investigations of elder abuse

Communicated with local and state law enforcement agencies throughout cnmmal proceedings
Prepared presentations and assisted in the training of law enforcement personnel and elder advocates



RHODE ISLAND DEPARTMENT OF THE ATTORNEY GENERAL 2005
Paralegal, Insurance Advocacy Unit, Civil Division
s Assisted with the preparation of insurance rate hearings, including tracking responses to all data requests,
maintaining attorneys’ files, and overseeing the production of trial binders

s  Responsible for the preparation and filing of legal briefs
s Compared and reviewed proposed insurance laws and regulations

SKADDEN, ARPS, SLATE, MEAGHER & FLOM LLP, Boston, MA 2004-2005

Legnal Hiring Assistant
s Assisted in the hiring process of Summer Associates

¢ Responsible for arranging interviews of all praspective attorneys

Represented firm at law school job fairs/receptions
Prepared materials used by attorneys at weekly Hiring Committee Meeting and participated in the meetings

¢  Maintained firm-wide databese of all attorney applicants
» Point of contact for attorneys regarding any HR related matters

DEBEVOISE & PLIMPTON LLP, Washington, DC 2003-2004
Legal Receptionist
Handled all incoming calls from clients, attorneys, and the general public

Assisted managing partner on special projects
Maintained and arranged office space for attorneys, clients, and staff
e  Organized office wide events, working with outside vendors and suppliers

EDUCATION

NORTHEASTERN UNIVERSITY, Boston, MA January-March 2005
Paralegal Professional Certificate Program

THE CATHOLIC UNIVERSITY OF AMERICA, Washington, DC 1999-2003

B.A. Media Studies

s  Overall G.P.A. - 3.76/4.0; Magna Cum Laude
¢  Phi Eta Sigma (Fall 2000 — Spring 2003)
e Highest Honor in Senior Comprehensive Exam

COMMITTEES AND SPECIAL TRAINING .
¢  Member of the New Hampshire Family Mediator Certification Board since July 2015

¢  Served as Chair and NHLA's representative to the Strafford County Family Justice Center Advisory
Council

¢  Attended the National Family Justice Center Alliance Conference (2011, 2012, 2014, 2016)

=  Attend annual NH Statewide Conferences on Domestic and Sexual Violence and Stalking

¢ April of 2007- Attended the Courtroom Technology course given by the National District Attorneys
Association at the National Advocacy Center in Columbia, SC. This four day course focused on using
PowerPoint as a tool for case analysis and courtroom presentations.

COMPUTER SKILLS
e Proficient in Microsoft Word, Excel, PowerPoint, Westlaw, Lexis, FLAPS, and Web-based research



GEOFFREY D. KETCHAM

Experience

New Hampshire Legal Assistance (NHLA), Concord, NH, 2018-present
- Managing Attorney, Concord Branch Law Office '
Supervise locally-based NHLA advocates, support staff, interns, law students volunteers
Statewide administrative and court advocacy and litigation
Legislative and administrative advocacy, statewide projects, community partnerships
New Hampshire Bar Association
Northeast Legal Aid, Inc. (Merrimack Valley Legal Services), Lowell, MA, 2004-2018
- Staff Attorney, housing, family/domestic relations, elder & public benefits
Caretakers of Children at Risk (CCR) Project Coordinator (2017-2018)
Northeast Housing Court Lawyer for a Day Program Coordinator (2014-2017)
Housing Unit Head (2014-2017)
Training/mentbring new staff; AmeriCorps supervisor; supervise interns, law students
Administrative and court advocacy and litigation
Strategic Planning, Merger, Private Attorney Involvement & Needs Assessment
committees
Assist with grant compliance and development
Greater Lowell Bar Association
Gordon College, Wenham, MA, Adjunct Professor, 2015
Department of Political Science; Course Title: Law and Society
Legal Aid of East Tennessee, Inc., (Knoxville Legal Aid Society), Knoxville, TN, 1999-2003
Staff Attorney, public benefits, consumer & general practice
Administrative and court advocacy and litigation
Community presentations & outreach; develop & edit program publications
Tennessee Alliance of Legal Services (TALS) task forces
Knoxville Bar Association
Retired and Senior Volunteer Program (RSVP) Advisory Council
Full Service Schools Project, Detainer Project, Saturday Bar, Veterans Stand Down,
Fresh Start classes, Urban League seminars
The Neal Law Firm, Knoxville, TN, 1998-1999, Associate, general civil practice
Bar Admissions: Tennessee, 1998; Eastern District of Tennessee (U.S. District Court), 2003;
Massachusetts, 2005, (2004 pursuant to Rule 3:04); New Hampshire, 2019; United States
District Court, District of New Hampshire, 2019

Education

Doctor of Jurisprudence, University of Tennessee College of Law, Knoxville, TN, 1998
Bachelor of Arts in History, Gordon College, Wenham, MA, 1994

Keicham, Page 1 of 2



Contributions to Legal Field & Community

Legal Tactics (MA tenant rights publication) Author & Reviewer (2017-2018)
Commission on the Status of Grandparents Raising Grandchildren panel member (2018)
Northeast Housing Court Lawyer for a Day Program Training (2006-2017)

Northeast Housing Court Tenancy Preservation Program Advisory Group (2014-2018)
Massachusetts Society for the Prevention of Cruelty to Children presentation (2014)
Greater Lowell Education and Advocacy Network (GLEAN) Advisory Team (domestic
violence high risk group) (2012-2014)

Middlesex Community College, Work Readiness Program presentation (2008)
Community presentations & outreach; develop & edit program publications

Training Opportunities

New Hampshire Bar Association, Continuing Legal Education

NHLA Trial Skills and Substantive programs '
Massachusetts Legal Assistance Corporation programs

Massachusetts Continuing Legal Education programs

Massachusetts Legal Reform Institute, Inc. programs

American Bar Association Litigation training for Legal Services Advocates
National Institute for Trial Advocacy litigation training

National Consumer Law Center consumer rights conference

TALS conferences

Tennessee Commission on Continuing Legal Education

Other Involvement

New England Academy, Beverly, MA, Advisory Board Member (past)

First Congregational Church, Kingston, NH, music director

Legal Aid Staff Association, officer, member, committee chair/member (TN & MA)
Town & Timberlane Youth Recreational Athletics, YMCA coach and volunteer
Timberlane Music Association, member and volunteer

Ketcham, Page 2 of 2



“ RUTH NBINTZ

_ EDUCATION -
Univevsity of Caltfornio, Boalt Hall School of Law, Beckeley, CA
-ID., May 1995

Dartmouth College
B.A. cuin laudo with wajor In englneering sciences, Juns 1988 +

L

BAR ADMISSIONS

State Bar of California - 1996 (1mct{vo) .

State Bar of Qhio - 1997 (lnactive) ¥
_ State Bar of Oregon -~ 1999 (subumitted Porm A reslgnaﬁouhl?.OO'?)
¥ State Bar of New Hampshire - 2004

EXPERIENCE " P

" n
L

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, thdaton, Now Hampshire

Staff Attorney, stexting June 2004, Managing Attorney, Septamber 2008 to preseat. -

Ropresent and provide legal advice to low-income and senior ollents living in ndrthein New Hampshive
with a wide variety of legal prablems: housing (evictions, conditions, Section 8 terminations, fair
‘housing); Social Security and Medicaid; family law (divarcs, custody and visitation, child suppoxt,
domestic violence rostraining orders); uneniployment conpensation and other public benefits; utilities;
and other matters. Appear in ‘state and fndaral coutts and at administrative hearings.

Southeastern Ohio Legal Services, Portsmouth Zaneaville, and Newark, Ohio
Staff Attorney, May 1996 to March 1999, April 2001 to May 2004,
Represented and provided legal advice to low-Income clients living inTural Olio with a wide variety of
légal problems: family law (divorce, custody and visitation, child support, domestic violence); housing
(evictions, conditions, rent escrow, land installnent contrasts, foreclosureg); consumer law including
predatory lending and debt collsction; utilities; ‘Social Security, uremplqyment compousauou, and other
public benefits; apecial education; wills; aud other matters. Membex of the “housing team! " apnd
“predatory lending teany” to atrategize and address concerns of low-income poople, Appoared i state
and federal courts and at administrative hearmga

‘l
Legal Aid Services of Olegon Pendleton, Oregon .

. Staff. Artomay, April 1999 to April 2001.
Represented and provided legal advice priwarily to members and other Native American resideats of

tho Umatilla Indian Reservation in various areas of poveity law and Tndian law, Appoarod in tribal apd .
state courts and at adoiinistrative hearings.

b

San Francisco Nelghborbood Legal Assistance Fo undation, Sam Francisco, Gelifornia
* Y Domestic Relations Unit Law C‘Ze:lc, Jawuay 1994 to May 1995. %

East Bay Community Law Cem‘.en chkoley, Cahfornia
HIV Unit Intern, Jannary 1995 to May 1995,

Lsgal Ald Soelety of Alameda County, Onkland, California
Law Clerl, Juno-1993 to June 1994.

* Family Violenca Law Center Berkeley, CA
Volunteer, Spring aud Sanmor 1993.

Tongass Alaska Girl Scout Council, Junean, AK 3
VISTA Volunteer, November 1989 to November 1990.

W
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Jessica Erazo

EDUCATION
University of New Hampshire School of Law, Concord, NH
Juris Doctor May 2018

Wheelock College, Boston, MA
Bachelor of Social Work and Juvenile Justice May 2015
GPA 3.52

LEGAL EXPERIENCE
New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Concord, NH May 2019-Present
Staff Attorney
» Represented clients throughout their family law cases; prepared and represented clients at temporary
hearings, final hearings, and modification hearings.
o Represented clients at domestic violence protective order hearings; prepared exhibits and client testimony
and represented clients at their final hearings.

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Manchester NH March 2018-May 2019
Legal Intern
e Assisted with preparation for trials and hearings; drafted Financial Affidavits, Uniform Support Orders, and
settlement documents for supervising attorney.
e Attended legislative hearings; attended and observed legislative process and gained insight as to how these
bills will affect NHLA’s clients and abilities to provide services.

Rochester Circuit Court-Family Division-Referee Philip Cross, Rochester NH June 2017-August 2017
Clerk
¢ Assisted with writing orders; thoroughly read case files, attended hearings, and prepared temporary or final
orders under the supervision of Philip Cross.
e Updated the Judicial Reference Guide; created a portfolio with updated New Hampshire Supreme Court
cases and organized the Guide by type of case and year.

Department of Children, Youth, and Families, Rochester NH June 2016-August 2016
Intern
e Assisted with preparation for trials and hearings; prepared exhibits and documents for supervisor to use
during hearings.
¢ Created portfolios for Termination of Parental Rights adjudications; read through hundreds of pages of
documents from the life of the case and noted specific instances of conduct required to be proven for

termination.
EXPERIENCE
LexisNexis, Concord, NH August 2016-January 2018
e Assisted students with research questions and helped students find cases or statutes using the program.
Wheelock College Residence Life, Boston MA August 2013-August 2015
Resident Advisor

¢ Attended trainings for trauma informed practice; learned how to respond to disclosure of sexual assauit and
role-played scenarios for practice and feedback.

VOLUNTEER EXPERIENCE
Mothers for Justice and Equality, Boston, MA September 2014-May 2015
» Assisted Youth Advocates Program; collaborated with youth on projects and presentations



Elyssa Willadsen

EDUCATION

Vermont Law School, Soluth Royalton, VT

Juris Doctor, January 2021
s G.P.A:3.44, Dean’s List: 2020 Spring Semester and 2019 Summer Semester
e National Association of Women Lawyers’ Qutstanding Law Student 2020

School of Visual Arts, New York, NY
Bachelors in Fine Arts, May 2015
e G.P.A:3.78, Dean’s Choice Selection 2015, Dean’s List: 2010-2015

BAR ADMITTANCE

» Admitted to the Bar of the New Hampshire Supreme Court.
s  Active member of the New Hampshire Bar Association.
* Admitted to the Bar of the Vermont Supreme Court.

EXPERIENCE

New Hampshire Legal Assistance, Concord, NH
Staff Attorney, Domestic Violence Advocacy Project, Jan. 2023- Present
» Providing pro bono legal representation for family law clients. This representation includes
domestic violence, divorce, and parenting issues.

Law Office of Claudia Pringles, Montpelier, VT
Associate Attorney, Sept. 2021- Dec. 2022
e Handled most Probate matters and Guardianship cases. Guardianship work included
participation in the Vermont Bar Association Low Bono Program. Drafted Estate Planning
documents such as, Trusts, Wills, Advanced Directives, and Power of Attormeys. Handled
representation of sellers in Real Estate transactions.

Have Justice — Will Travel, Vershire, VT
Full-time Legal Extern, Fall Semester 2020
e Communicated with clients, opposing counsel, and other necessary parties. Extensive
research and writing assignments including memos, motions, and briefs. Attended hearings,
mediations, and meeting with clients. Represented a client in a Relief from Abuse hearing
and subsequent motions.

Appellate Advocacy Program, South Royalton, VT
Selected Student, Spring Semester 2020
e Worked in collaboration with other students to draft appeals to the Vermont Supreme Court
on behalf of pro se litigants.

South Royalton Legal Clinic, South Royalton, VT
Part-time Student Clinician, Family Law Project, Fall Semester 2020
s Assisted the Supervising Attorney, Michelle Donnelly, with drafting motions, interviewing
clients, and maintaining correspondence. Attended client meetings, hearings, and status
conferences.



B&B Farms and CSA, Galloway, NJ
Field Hand, Mar. 2018 - Aug. 2018
» Performed daily activities to keep the farm functioning and assisted CSA members.

COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT

Tabling Volunteer for Safeline, Inc., Chelsea Flea Market, Chelsea VT, July 16, 2022
e Informed event goers about Safeline’s mission to assist Domestic & Sexual Violence
survivors. Received donations and signatures for town budget allocations.

Parliamentarian of the Student Bar Association, September 2019 ~ April 2020
o Ensured order was maintained in SBA meetings through a thorough understanding of the
Bylaws, Standing Rules, and Robert’s Rules.

Co- Chair of Women’s Law Society at Vermont Law School, April 2019 — April 2020
e Coordinated events and meetings, while upholding our group’s goals and interests.

Program Leader at One Planet, Sept. 2018 — Dec. 2019
o Taught children how to prepare simple vegetable-centric meals as an after-school activity.

INTERESTS

s Qutdoor activities, community involvement, reading, creative writing, cooking, and very
amateur birding.



Margaret Brick

PROFILE Attorney experienced in Family law, including domestic violence and trauma
implicated cases.
Professional focus on Ethics. Bilingual: Spanish/English.

BAR New Hampshire State Bar, New Hampshire Federal District Court Bar
United States immigration Court- Boston
Wisconsin State Bar and Wisconsin Federal District Court Bar

CAREER HISTORY

04/2022-Present New Hampshire Legal Assistance
Law Practice: Domestic Violence Advocacy Project. Famlly law matters repre-
senting survivors of domestic
violence and sexual abuse in proteclive order cases and family law cases.

08/2018- 03/2022 Samaha Russelt Hodgdon, PA
Law Practice: Family law matters including Domaestic Vlolence divorce, parenting
issues and divorce mediation, Guardianship representation of proposed wards,
Business, Real Estate, Wills and Trusts law

01/2011- 05/2020 Southern New Hampshire University .
Adjunct Professor of Business Law and Philosophy Ethics. Business School
Bradiey Three Year Honors Program and School of Arts & Science.

09/2009 - 12/2015 Margaret Brick, Attorney and Counselor at Law, PLLC,
Law Practice: Family matters including divorce, Wills and Trusts. Employment
Practices. Mediation Practice: Family mediation, Employment Discrimination
cases for EEOC and N.H. Commission for Human Rights.

02/2010 - 05/2017 Bhutanese Community of New Hampshire
Of Counsel 501(c)3 organization. Reduced fee and pro bono legal services.

05/2009 — 2/2010 International Institute of New Hampshire
Pro bono lega! services for Immigration Law Clinic, Family-based Immigration
Law.

2008 - 2010 Cheshire Mediation. Keene, NH

Individual and co-mediation of cases both privately scheduled and by Court ap-
pointment. Supervision of Mediator Interns,

2000 - 2003 New England College. Henniker, NH
Adjunct faculty

1995 - 1999 lllinois District 41- Elected School Board Member. Glen Ellyn, IL



EDUCATION

1988 University of Wisconsin Law School. Madison, WI
J.D.
1985 University of Wisconsin-Madison. Madison, WI

B.A . Spanish-With Honors

CERTIFICATIONS
- Equal Employment Opportunity Commission (EEOC)- Boston Office Rostered Mediator

- Mediator NH Commission for Human Rights
- N.H. Superior Court Rule 150 Certification

- New Hampshire Collaborative Law Alliance certified Attorney

PROFESSIONAL ORGANIZATIONS

New Hampshire Bar- Active

The Kindness Cures Project, Ltd.- Board Member Emeritus 501(c)3 organization

Littleton Regional Hospital Ethics Commitiee Member

Wisconsin Bar Associations-Inactive

Physicians for Human Rights- Attorney Associate 2010-2012
- New Hampshire Collaborative Law Alliance Member

- New Hampshire Conflict Resolution Association. Board Member 2008-2013. President 2012



New Hampshire Legal Assistance
Profect Director;
Job Description
3-7-07

Qveryiew; Project Direstors perform a key role at NHLA and are responsible for
management of substantive law units, They are expected to take an active role in .
managing the work of staff assigned to the project, overseeing project grants, and
promoting the objectives of the unit. Project directors have the authority to delegate
work and coordinate work of the unit with other managers and advocates. Project

_ managers repoit to the Deputy Director. Duties include but are not limited to: ~

o Working with senior management team and others fo develop and maintain
Project goals and objectives. ,
" o Identify and work in collaboration with Litigation Direotor to pursue ideas
for litigation, including impact and appellate.
o Identify and work in collaboration with Polioy Director to.pursue ideas for
administrative and legislative advocacy. '
o Share information about Project work throughout NHLA, including via

Litigation Repot. ; .
o Identify and pursue avernues for pro bono aftorneys to further Project
goals. :

o Develop and maintain a national perspective on the legal services and
other substantive law work perfaining to Project. (The Project Director is
not be expeoted to be'an expert in cach component area of practice .
covered by the Project. The Projeot Director may delegate responsibility
for tracking national developments in certain practice ateas to other
Project members.) :

e Having primary responsibility for grant management which includes familiarity
with grant terms, obligations and limitations and grant reporting.

o Ensuring that objectives of Project and goals and objectives required by grants
funding the Project are mef.

s Working collaboratively with Controller to set budget and hours’ expectations for
advoocates working in Project, ' -

o Working in active collaboration with the Development Director to submit reports
and to apply for ongoing grants. Be alert to new grants or funds to support and
sustain work of Project and notify Development Director of such opportunities.

¢ Working in active collaboration with managing attorneys in each BLO to
regularly supervise legal work done by advocates in Project.
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Working with Deputy Director to resolve areas of conflict between Mahaging
Attorney, Project Director, and/or individual advocates.

Working collaboratively with project team members and assisting them in

developing their knowledge and skills. .
o Bncourage project team members to pursue fraining to develop

complementary areas of expertise. .

o In conjunction with Deputy Director, Litigation Dire<ns1:XMLFault xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat"><ns1:faultstring xmlns:ns1="http://cxf.apache.org/bindings/xformat">java.lang.OutOfMemoryError: Java heap space</ns1:faultstring></ns1:XMLFault>